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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUDICATURE AT BOMBAY

BENCH AT NAGPUR
CRIMINAL REVISION APPLICATION NO. OF 2026

DISTRICT : NAGPUR

Sanjay Hariram Agarwal. ...APPLICANT
(Original Accused)
Versus
State of Maharashtra ...RESPONDENTS

(Org. Applicant)

SYNOPSIS
SR. | DATE PARTICULARS
NO.
1 2002 NDCC Bank entered into Government

Securities transactions with Home Trade Ltd.
(HTL) on principal-to-principal basis.
Payments made in ordinary commercial

course

2 |-2002 FIR registered at Ganesh Peth Police Station

alleging offences under Sections 406, 4009,
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468, 471, 120-B IPC against HTL and its

Directors including the present Applicant.

2002

Charge-sheet filed and Regular Criminal Case
No.147/2002 (earlier RCC No.573/2002)

registered before Ld. A.C.J.M., Nagpur.

Applicant filed proceedings before Hon’ble
High Court for clubbing of cases. Trial

against Applicant remained stayed.

22,12.23

Co-accused tried separately and convicted.
Applicant was not party to said trial and had

no opportunity to cross-examine witnesses.

2025

Proceedings against Applicant revived.

Separate trial directed to proceed.

Applicant filed application for discharge
under Section 239 Cr.P.C. below Exh. 3666
contending absence of ingredients of offences

and lack of personal role.

31.01.95

Ld. 2nd Addl. Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Nagpur rejected discharge application relying

upon findings recorded in judgment against
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co-accused and without independent

evaluation of material.

9 |26.11.25 |Ld. Magistrate framed charges under
Sections 120-B, 406, 409, 468, 471 r/w 34
IPC against Applicant mechanically.

10 Hence, the present Criminal Revision under

Sections 397 & 401 Cr.P.C. challenging orders

dated 11.11.2025 and 26.11.2025.

POINTS TO

BE HEARD :-

1] Whether discharge under Section 239
Cr.P.C. ought to have been granted when the
charge-sheet does not disclose ingredients of

the alleged offences?

2] Whether findings recorded in a separate

trial of co-accused can be relied upon against

the Applicant?
3] Whether principal-to-principal
commercial transactions constitute

“entrustment” so as to attract Sections

406/409 IPC?
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4] Whether absence of a “false document”
attracts offences under Sections 468/471

IPC?

5] Whether mere designation as Director

creates criminal or vicarious liability under

IPC?

6] Whether continuation of criminal
prosecution in a purely commercial dispute

amounts to abuse of process of law?

ACTS & | 1. Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973

RULES :- 2. Indian Penal Code, 1860

AUTHORITI | At present nil.
ES:-

NAGPUR COUNSEL FOR APPLICANT
DATED: 09.02.2026 (ADV. SAGAR KISHOR LAMBAT)
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUDICATURE AT BOMBAY

BENCH AT NAGPUR.

CRIMINAL REVISION APPLICATION NO. OF
2026.

DISTRICT : NAGPUR.

ACT CODE: 09, &y),.Cselo - 19

IN THE MATTER OF UNDER
SECTION a87 & 401 (OF

CRIMINAL PROCEDURE CODE.

NOTARIAL REG. s
ENTRYNO.,. "D -0 IN THE MATTER OF ORDER
nArs\SJOLfl@'lG DATED 11.11.2025 PASSED BY
‘ THE LD. 2ND ADDL. CHIEF
JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE,

NAGPUR R.C.C. NO. 573/2002
BELOW EXH. 3666.

Sanjay Hariram Agarwal,
Age: 60 Years, Occu, : Business,
R/o0 7 Hari Sava Street, Kidderpore,

Kolkata-700023, West Bengal. «...APPLICANT
(Original Accused)




VERSUS

1]  The State Of Maharashtra,
Through Ganesh Peth Police Station, Nagpur,
Tq. & Dist. : Nagpur. ...RESPONDENT

(Org. Applicant)

CRIMINAL REVISION UNDER SECTION 397 & 401 OF
CRIMINAL PROCEDURE CODE

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHOWETH AS UNDER:-

1. The present Criminal Revision is filed against the
order dated 11.11.2025 passed by the Ld. 2nd Addl.
Chief Judicial Magistrate, Nagpur, whereby the
application for discharge filed under Section 239
CrPC by the Applicant(Accused No.3) has been
rejected and against the order of Framing charge
dated 26.11.2025 passed by the Ld. 2" Addl. Chief
Judicial Magistrate, Nagpur whereby charges under
sections 120B, 406 r/w 120B or 406 r/w 34, 409 r/w

120B or 409 r/w 34, 468 r/w 120B or 468 r/s 34, 471
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r/w 120B or 471 r/w 34 have been framed against the
applicant.

2. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS:

A.  That the prosecution case, as reflected from the
charge-sheet and materials referred in the
impugned order, pertains to a series of
investment transactions undertaken by Nagpur
District Central Co-operative Bank (hereinafter
“NDCC Bank”) in the course of its investment
operations in Government Securities. For this
purpose, NDCC Bank entered into transactions
with Home Trade Limited (hereinafter “HTL”), a
registered entity engaged in the business of
securities-related transactions. HTL is registered
with the Reserve Bank of India (hereinafter “RBI”)
for dealing in Government Securities vide

Registration no. 6-H/82.

B.  As part of these dealings, NDCC Bank is alleged
to have placed purchase orders for Government

of India Securities with HTL. Payments
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corresponding to such purchase transactions
were made by the Bank to HTL over a period of
time, These payments were credited to corporate
bank accounts of HTL maintained in the ordinary
course of business.

The Applicant herein was one of the Directors of
HTL at the relevant time and, as per the
prosecution, was authorised to operate company
accounts and sign routine  corporate
communications arising out of the dealings

between HTL and NDCC Bank.

The prosecution alleges that the securities
forming the subject matter of the transactions
were not ultimately delivered by HTL to NDCC
Bank, and that photocopies of securities
forwarded in the meantime were later opined by
the Reserve Bank of India to be in the name of

other companies.

It is further stated in the charge-sheet that the

monies received from NDCC Bank were utilised
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by HTL towards business operations,
administrative expenditure, acquisition of office

infrastructure and equipment.

According to the prosecution, the total value of
the securities transaction was around Rs. 241.73
Crores, out of which an amount of Rs. 124.21
Crores was subsequently reflected as returned to
NDCC Bank. The remaining amount of
approximately Rs. 117.51 Crores is alleged to have

remained outstanding and unadjusted.

The prosecution further states that since the
securities were not ultimately transferred to
NDCC Bank, and since the funds released for the
purchase of such securities were utilised by HTL
for other corporate purposes, the present
Applicantand other individuals connected with
the company and the bank officials acted in
concert, resulting in the filing of the present
charge-sheet under Sections 406, 409, 468, 471

and 120-B read with Section 34 IPC.
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That pursuant to the above chargesheet, case has
been registered as Regular Criminal Case No.147 of
2002. Pending the trial, Applicantfiled Criminal
Application No.628 of 2014 before the Principal Seat
of the High Court of Bombay for clubbing of all the
FIRs registered against him and other co-accused
and for a joint trial, wherein the Principal Seat of the
High Court of Bombay stayed the trial against
petitioner. Pending the said criminal application,
Public Interest Litigation No.25 of 2014 came to be
filed before the Hon’ble High Court for directing the
learned A.C.J.M., Nagpur to expedite the trial of
Regular Criminal Case No.147 of 2002. Since there
was a stay to the trial against Applicantin Criminal
Application No.628 of 2014, in Civil Application
No.1701 of 2019 in Public Interest Litigation No.25 of

2014, the Division Bench of the High Court directed

that the trial shall proceed against the remaining

concluded by the learned A.C.J.M., Nagpur.
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Meanwhile, Criminal Application No.628 of 2014
filed by the Applicant was dismissed by the Court
vide order dated 09.07.2021 directing the learned

A.C.J.M., Nagpur to complete the trial expeditiously.

The Applicant filed an application in Regular
Criminal Case No.147 of 2002 pending before the
learned A.C.J.M, Nagpur for seeking direction to the
police to file a split-up chargesheet; give a separate
case number to his case; and comply with Section
207 of the Cr.P.C. The application came to be
dismissed by the learned A.C.J.M. by its impugned
order. An unsuccessful attempt was subsequently
made before the learned Additional Sessions Judge,
Nagpur in revision. Subsequently Criminal Writ
Petition No.1009 Of 2024 was filed before the High
Court, wherein while the prayer for separate number
was rejected, the Hon’ble court observed that the
learned A.C.J.M. is competent to understand the

meaning of a separate trial and will not treat all the



&

exhibited documents as proved documents in the

case against the present applicant.

In view of this background, the proceedings against
the present Applicant started and the Applicant filed
an application under Section 239 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure, below Exh. 3666 in RCC No.
147/2002, before the Learned Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Nagpur seeking discharge on the ground
that the material relied upon by the prosecution,
even if accepted in its entirety, does not disclose the
ingredients necessary to constitute the offences
alleged against the Applicant. The copy of the
application filed below Exh. 3666 in RCC No.
147/2002, before the Learned Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Nagpur, is annexed herewith and marked

as Annexure-A.

The Learned Chief Judicial Magistrate, Nagpur,
however, by order dated 11.11.2025, rejected the
discharge application filed below Exh. 3666. the

application submit that, the copy of order dated
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11.11.2025, passed by the Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Nagpur below Exh. 3666, in RCC No. 147/2023 and
by order dated 26.11.2025 framed charges against
the Applicant in in RCC No. 147/2023, is annexed

herewith and marked as Annexure-B & C The

Applicant therefore prefers the present Criminal
Revision Application challenging the orders dated
11.11.2025 and 26.11.2025, passed by Learned Chief
Judicial Magistrate, Nagpur below Exh. 3666 in RCC
No. 147/2002, under section 397 of Criminal
Procedure Code, inter alia on the following grounds,

which are without prejudice to one another :-

GROUNDS

A. The Learned Trial Court Committed a Grave Error in
Relying Upon Findings Recorded in a Separate

Judgment Against Co-Accused.

It is submitted that paragraph 19 of the impugned order, reads

as follows:

“There are statements of several witnesses and

voluminous documentary evidence prima facie in support
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of the aforesaid conclusion drawn by the Investigating
Officer against accused No.3. Accused Nos.1, 2, 4, 7, 8 and 9
have been convicted for offences punishable under Section
406, 409, 471, 468 read with 120B of the IPC vide Judgment
dated 22.12.2023. No doubt, the observations and findings
in the judgment of conviction dated 22.12.2023 can not be
used for convicting present accused. However, the
observations and findings in para Nos.39, 42, 43, 57, 63, 74,
77, 138, 139, 141, 146 and 147 are relevant for the
consideration of present application. The said observations
and findings go to show the role of accused No.3 in the

commission of alleged offences.”

B.  The very observation by the Learned Trial Court that
such observations cannot be used for conviction
amounts to acknowledgment that these findings are
not evidence against the Applicant. Despite this, the
Court has proceeded to rely upon them for rejecting
discharge. This approach is legally untenable.

B.i. The law is well settled that findings recorded in a

judgment against co-accused in a separate trial are
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neither admissible nor relevant against another accused
who was not party to that trial. The Applicant had no
opportunity to cross-examine witnesses, challenge
evidence or participate in the proceedings forming the
basis of such findings. Reliance upon such material

violates the principles of natural justice and fair trial.
B.ii. Section 239 of CrPC reads as follows:

“c39. When accused shall be discharged.—If, upon
considering the police report and the documents sent with it
under section 173 and making such examination, if any, of
the accused as the Magistrate thinks necessary and after
giving the prosecution and the accused an opportunity of
being heard, the Magistrate considers the charge against
the accused to be groundless, he shall discharge the accused,

and record his reasons for so doing.”

It is humbly submitted that under Section 239 CrPC, the

Court must assess only:

i. the charge-sheet, and
ii. documents submitted under Section 173,

and
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Any material outside the prosecution record, including
judicial findings from another proceeding, particularly
those not forming part of evidence in the present case,

cannot be imported to decide discharge.

By treating findings from another judgment as
indicative of the Petitioner’s alleged role, the Learned
Magistrate has effectively lowered the statutory
threshold and replaced the legal test of whether the

material discloses an offence.

Such reliance is also contrary to Section 273 CrPC,
which mandates that evidence may be used only if
recorded in the presence of the accused and also the
constitutional guarantee under Articles 14 and 21,
requiring  fairness, individual liability, and
adjudication strictly on materials legally admissible

against the accused.

The Supreme Court has repeatedly held that criminal
findings do not travel beyond the proceedings in which
they are rendered, unless the accused participated and

had full rights to defend. No Court can use judicial
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conclusions as a substitute for evidence or as a
presumption of guilt at the stage of framing charges or
considering discharge.

The impugned reasoning therefore suffers from
illegality in consideration of impermissible material,
and material irregularity in reliance on findings not

part of record.

The rejection of discharge on the strength of
extraneous material is thus vitiated, and the impugned

order is liable to be set aside on this ground alone.

That the impugned orders are vitiated by
prejudice arising from the trial of Co-
Accused and reflects non-application of
Judicial Mind, rendering the statutory right

of discharge illusory.

The impugned order rejecting the petitioner’s
discharge application is manifestly vitiated by the
Learned Magistrate’s reliance on, and influence from,

the judgment rendered in the trial of the co-accused,

coupled with a complete failure to independently
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examine whether the charge-sheet material discloses
sufficient grounds to frame charges against the
petitioner. The order, read as a whole, demonstrates a
pre-determined approach rather than a neutral
adjudication as mandated under Section 239 CrPC.

As already noted, in paragraph 19 of the impugned
order, there is express reliance upon specific
paragraphs of the judgment of conviction passed
against the co-accused, and observes that such
findings “go to show the role of accused No.3”. Having
done so, the Court thereafter proceeds to reject
discharge without undertaking an independent

evaluation of the material on record qua the petitioner.

Beyond this reliance on findings from another trial, the
impugned order does not disclose any independent
reasoning as to what material contained in the charge-
sheet, or documents satisfies the statutory ingredients
of the offences alleged. The rejection of discharge is
thus not founded on the prosecution record, but on the

shadow cast by the concluded trial of other accused.
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The prejudicial approach becomes even more evident
from paragraph 20 of the impugned order, which

states:

“Thus, even assuming that, the HTL was not either a

broker or an agent, yet, due to the charge of criminal

conspiracy, the offences punishable under Sections 406

and 409 of the IPC would be prima facie attracted against

accused No.3.”

Cv.

The above reasoning is legally untenable and logically
flawed. The order treats the mere existence of a charge
of conspiracy as sufficient to attract offences under
Sections 406 and 409 IPC, without identifying what
material on record supports the allegation of
conspiracy, what act or agreement is attributed to the
petitioner, or how the essential ingredient of
entrustment which is mandatory for Sections 406 and

409 stands satisfied.

At the stage of discharge, the Court is not required to
see whether allegations are made, but whether the

material on record, if unrebutted, is capable of
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sustaining the charge in law. By holding that offences
are attracted “due to the charge of criminal conspiracy”,
the order has inverted the statutory test, that is instead
of examining whether material supports the charge,
the Court has proceeded as though the presence of a

charge itself forecloses discharge.

If such an approach were to be accepted, Section 239
CrPC would be rendered wholly otiose, for any
complaint or charge-sheet could simply allege
conspiracy or breach of trust, and the Court would be
bound to proceed to trial without examining whether
the record supports such allegations. This would defeat
the very purpose of a discharge provision, which exists

to prevent unnecessary and unjustified criminal trials.

The same infirmity is visible in paragraph 21 of the

impugned order, wherein it is observed that:

“As regard to the offence of forgery, there are

allegations in respect of presentation of photocopies

of GOI Securities 'which were found to be forged.

Thus, it can not be said that, there is no material for
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Jframing charge against accused No.3 for offences

punishable under Section 468 and 471 of the IPC.”

[£5) 2 Once again, the Learned Magistrate has equated the
existence of allegations with the existence of material,
without identifying what specific document is alleged
to be forged, who is alleged to have forged it, how the
Applicant is connected to the making or use of such
document, or whether the statutory definition of a
“false document” under Section 464 IPC is even prima
facie satisfied.

Cx. The prejudice is further compounded by the fact that
the order framing charges against the Applicant is, in
substance and language, a copy-paste reproduction of
the charge-framing order passed earlier against the co-
accused, without any independent discussion, or
analysis of the Applicant’s role. The charge-framing
exercise, which is required to be accused-specific, has
thus been reduced to a mechanical replication of

conclusions reached in another case.
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The impugned order framing charge does not disclose
what act the Applicant is required to defend himself
against, nor does it delineate the nature of the alleged
forgery or the role attributed to him. Proceeding to
trial in such circumstances would deprive the
Applicant of the ability to meaningfully defend himself
and would violate the requirement of a fair and
informed trial, which is an integral facet of Article 21 of

the Constitution.

The cumulative reading of paragraphs 19, 20 and 21 of
the impugned order thus reveals that the Learned
Magistrate has allowed the outcome of the co-
accused’s trial to colour his assessment and rejected
discharge on the premise that “charges exist”, rather
than on an analysis of whether they are legally

sustainable on the material on record.

Such an approach amounts to non-exercise of
jurisdiction vested under Section 239 CrPC, and
reflects a prejudiced and mechanical rejection of the

petitioner’s statutory right to seek discharge. The %
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impugned orders, therefore, stands vitiated on this
ground alone and warrants interference by this

Hon’ble Court.

That there is nothing on record to attract the

charge of Criminal Breach of Trust.

The Learned Trial Court has failed to appreciate that
the allegation of foundational ingredient of offences
under Sections 406 and 409 IPC, namely entrustment
of property or dominion over property, is entirely
absent from the prosecution record. As per the charge-
sheet itself, the transactions between NDCC Bank and
HTL were carried out through formal contract notes in
the ordinary course of business. The prosecution does
not allege that the funds were entrusted for safe
custody, held in a fiduciary capacity.

As delineated by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in Delhi
Race Club Ltd. v. State of U.P. [(2024) 10 SCC
690] the following are the ingredients of Section 406

IEC:
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“In order to constitute a criminal breach of trust

(Section 406 IPC): -

1) There must be entrustment with person for

property or dominion over the property, and
2) The person entrusted: -

a) dishonestly misappropriated or converted

property to his own use, or

b) dishonestly used or disposed of the property or
willfully suffers any other person so to do in

violation of:

i. any direction of law prescribing the method in

which the trust is discharged; or

11. legal contract touching the discharge of trust”

D.iii. The very foundation of the offence of criminal breach
of trust lies in entrustment of property or dominion
over property. Unless such entrustment exists, no
offence under Sections 406 or 409 IPC can arise.

D.iv. The contract notes forming part of the charge-sheet,

issued by Home Trade Ltd. to NDCC Bank,
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categorically show that the transactions were carried
out on a Principal-to-Principal basis. True Copy of the
Contract Note forming part of the chargesheet is

annexed herewith as Annexure-D.

These contract notes clearly show that HTL’s name is
written as Counter Party Participant Name (CPN) and
not Counter Party Broker Name (CBN). They also
show that no brokerage or commission was charged by

HTL in respect of the said dealings.

This documentary evidence, emanating from the very

record of the prosecution, conclusively establishes that:

The transaction between HTL and NDCC Bank was a

commercial sale and purchase, and

The relationship was not that of principal and agent or
of trustee and beneficiary, but strictly between two

independent contracting parties.

Further, the Balance Sheet of the HTL shows that
there is no income reported under the head of Income

from Brokerage and there is income under the head of
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Investments. This shows that HTL didn’t make any
transactions in the capacity of a broker. True Copy of
the balance sheet of HTL as available from the
chargesheet is annexed herewith and marked as

Annexure-E.

The legal consequence of a principal-to-principal
contract is that each party acts in its own right,
assumes its own commercial risk, and owes no
fiduciary obligation to the other. Once the Bank made
payment to HTL as the contracting counterparty, the
property in that consideration passed to HTL; it
cannot be said that HTL or its directors were

“entrusted” with the Bank’s property.

As held by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in Delhi Race
Club Ltd. v. State of U.P., (2024) 10 SCC 690,
the concept of entrustment does not extend to

ordinary commercial transactions. The Court has

lucidly held:

“From the aforesaid, there is no manner of any doubt

whatsoever that in case of sale of goods, the property
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e passes to the purchaser from the seller when the goods are
delivered. Once the property in the goods passes to the
purchaser, it cannot be said that the purchaser was
entrusted with the property of the seller. Without
entrustment of property, there cannot be any criminal
breach of trust. Thus, prosecution of cases on charge of
criminal breach of trust, for failure to pay the
consideration amount in case of sale of goods is flawed to
the core. There can be civil remedy for the non-payment of
the consideration amount, but no criminal case will be

maintainable for it.”

Dx, The Hon’ble Supreme Court in M/s Shikhar
Chemicals v. State of U.P., 2025 SCC OnLine
SC 1643, has emphatically reiterated that a
commercial or sale transaction cannot amount to
entrustment so as to attract criminal breach of trust.

The Court observed:

“It was expected of the Additional CJM to know that in a

case of sale transaction where is the question of any

entrustment of goods so as to bring the case within the




248

ambit of criminal breach of trust punishable under Section
406 IPC. This position of law came to be explained by this
Court almost six decades back in the landmark decision
titled ‘State of Gujarat v. Jaswantlal Nathalal’, 1968 (2)
SCR 408, wherein this Court stated that a mere

transaction of sale cannot amount to an entrustment.”

Lxi. In absence of such entrustment or dominion, the first
and indispensable ingredient of Sections 406 and 409
IPC collapses. Without a fiduciary relationship or
personal custody of another’s property, no offence of

criminal breach of trust can arise in law.

D.xii. It is further submitted that once consideration for a
sale transaction is paid, the payer ceases to retain any
proprietary interest or control over such funds. The
recipient is free to utilise the consideration in any
manner it deems fit as part of its business operations.
It cannot be contended that the recipient is bound to
use the amount exclusively for a particular purpose or
transaction, unless expressly agreed by contract or law.

The utilisation of sale proceeds is a matter of
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commercial discretion and internal management of the
company, and any alleged non-application of such
funds cannot, in law, be construed as misappropriation

or breach of trust.

There is nothing on record to suggest that the
principal-to-principal transaction between NDCC
Bank and Home Trade Ltd. was impermissible under
any law or regulatory direction. The prosecution has
not pointed out from record any circular, notification,
or statutory provision which prohibits such sale
transactions being undertaken on a principal-to-
principal basis between a cooperative bank and a
registered entity. On the contrary, the communication
of the Reserve Bank of India, forming part of the
charge-sheet, indicates that Home Trade Ltd. was duly
registered with the RBI and authorised to deal in

Government Securities.

Further, Section 409 IPC specifically requires that the
accused be a banker, merchant, factor, broker,

attorney or agent and that the property be entrusted in
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such capacity. The existence of a principal-to-principal
relationship, expressly recorded in the contract notes,
negate the existence of any agency between NDCC

Bank and HTL or its directors.

Without prejudice to the above, even if it were
assumed arguendo that entrustment existed vis-a-vis
the company, there is no allegation or material
whatsoever demonstrating entrustment to the
Applicantpersonally. The charge-sheet does not allege
that the funds were credited to him, entrusted to him,
or held under his personal dominion.

It is submitted that the Learned Magistrate rejected
the petitioner’s submissions on criminal breach of
trust without examining whether the prosecution
material satisfied the foundational ingredient of
entrustment, which is mandatory under Sections 406

and 409 IPC.

It is, therefore, submitted that:

. There was no fiduciary relationship between NDCC

Bank and HTL and in any case there cant be any
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fiduciary relationship between NDCC Bank and
Accused No. 3;

The payment was made to HTL as a contracting
counterparty, not to the Accused personally; and

The transaction was conducted in the nature of a sale,
whereupon the ownership of funds passed to HTL,
leaving no scope for the concept of “entrustment”

under Section 405 IPC.

In light of the above, the essential and mandatory
element of entrustment is absent both in relation to
HTL and to the Applicant individually. Without such
element, the very substratum of Sections 406 and 409
IPC collapses. The continuation of proceedings on
these charges is therefore legally unsustainable, and
the impugned rejection of discharge on this count is

liable to be set aside.
That there is nothing on record to attract the

charge of Forgery.

It is submitted that in order to prove allegations under

Sections 468 and 471 of the Indian Penal Code, the
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ingredients of the offence of forgery as defined under
Sections 463 and 464 IPC must first be satisfied. These
foundational provisions delineate when a document
can be said to be “false” and when its making amounts
to “forgery.”

E.ii.  Section 463 IPC defines forgery as follows:

“Whoever makes any false document or false electronic
record or part of a document or electronic record, with
intent to cause damage or injury, to the public or to any
person, or to support any claim or title, or to cause any
person to part with property, or to enter into any express or
implied contract, or with intent to commit fraud or that

fraud may be committed, commits forgery.”

E.iii. Section 464 IPC explains when a person is said to
make a false document or electronic record. Broadly, a

false document is made when a person:

i. Dishonestly or fraudulently makes, signs, seals or
executes a document, intending it to be believed that it

was made or signed by another person; or
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Alters or tampers with an existing document without
lawful authority; or

Causes another to sign or execute a document knowing
that such person does not know the contents or the

nature of what he is signing.

From these provisions, it is clear that forgery is the act
of making a document that purports to be made by
someone else or under false authority. Merely writing
false recitals, or including incorrect or misleading
contents in a document, even if later found to be
untrue, does not by itself amount to forgery unless it is
shown that the accused made the document

pretending it was made or signed by another person.

.The Hon’ble Supreme Court in Mohd. Ibrahim v.

State of Bithar, (2009) 8 SCC 751, has clarified the
true import of Sections 463 and 464 IPC. It was held
that forgery involves the making of a document which
is intended to be believed as having been made by

someone else. The Court observed that:
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“16. There is a fundamental difference between a person
executing a sale deed claiming that the property conveyed
i1s his property, and a person executing a sale deed by
impersonating the owner or falsely claiming to be
authorised or empowered by the owner, to execute the
deed on owner's behalf. When a person executes a
document conveying a property describing it as his, there
are two possibilities. The first is that he bona fide believes
that the property actually belongs to him. The second is
that he may be dishonestly or fraudulently claiming it to
be his even though he knows that it is not his property. But
to fall under first category of “false documents”, it is not
sufficient that a document has been made or executed
dishonestly or fraudulently. There is a further requirement
that it should have been made with the intention of causing
it to be believed that such document was made or executed
by, or by the authority of a person, by whom or by whose

authority he knows that it was not made or executed.

17. When a document is executed by a person claiming a

property which is not his, he is not claiming that he is
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someone else nor is he claiming that he is authorised by

someone else. Therefore, execution of such document

(purporting to convey some property of which he is not the

owner) is not execution of a false document as defined

under Section 464 of the Code. If what is executed is not a

false document, there is no forgery. If there is no forgery,

then neither Section 467 nor Section 471 of the Code are

attracted.”

E.vil.

1i.

E.viil.

Thus, Section 464 fails to attract in the current case. It
is submitted that if Section 464 fails, 468 and 471

automatically fail to apply.

Even otherwise, to constitute an offence under Section
468 IPC, the following ingredients must be established:
The accused made a false document or electronic
record as defined in Section 464; and

The making of such document was with the intent that

it be used for the purpose of cheating.

The offence of Cheating is defined under Section 415 of
IPC. There is no allegation that Accused No. 3 induced

NDCC Bank or any other person to part with property,
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nor any material indicating intent to deceive or cause
wrongful loss or gain. The requisite mens rea of “intent
to cheat” is wholly missing. In the absence of the
allegation that the accused no. 3 acted with an intent
to cheat, the necessary ingredients of Section 468 IPC

are not satisfied even prima facie.

It is further submitted that offences of Cheating and
Criminal Breach of Trust are antithetical and can not
co-exist in the same offence. Cheating as defined under
Section 415 IPC and punishable under Section 420 IPC
requires proof of dishonest intention at the inception
of the transaction, i.e., when inducing the delivery of
property through deceit. Conversely, Section 406 IPC
applies when property is lawfully entrusted to the
accused, who subsequently develops a dishonest
intention and misappropriates it. These two offences
cannot arise from the same act or transaction.

The Supreme Court, in Delhi Race Club (supra),

explicitly clarified this distinction, holding:




=3

“38. In our view, the plain reading of the complaint fails to
spell out any of the aforesaid ingredients noted above. We
may only say, with a view to clear a serious misconception
of law in the mind of the police as well as the courts below,
that if it is a case of the complainant that offence of criminal
breach of trust as defined under Section 405IPC,
punishable under Section 406IPC, is committed by the
accused, then in the same breath it cannot be said that the
accused has also committed the offence of cheating as
defined and explained in Section 415 IPC, punishable under

Section 420 IPC.

41. The distinction between mere breach of contract and the
offence of criminal breach of trust and cheating is a fine one.
In case of cheating, the intention of the accused at the time
of inducement should be looked into which may be judged
by a subsequent conduct, but for this, the subsequent
conduct is not the sole test. Mere breach of contract cannot
give rise to a criminal prosecution for cheating unless
fraudulent or dishonest intention is shown right from the

beginning of the transaction i.e. the time when the offence
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is said to have been committed. Therefore, it is this

intention, which is the gist of the offence.

42. Whereas, for the criminal breach of trust, the property
must have been entrusted to the accused or he must have
dominion over it. The property in respect of which the
offence of breach of trust has been committed must be
either the property of some person other than the accused
or the beneficial interest in or ownership of it must be of
some other person. The accused must hold that property on
trust of such other person. Although the offence i.e. the
offence of breach of trust and cheating involve dishonest
intention, yet they are mutually exclusive and different in

basic concept.

43. There is a distinction between criminal breach of trust
and cheating. For cheating, criminal intention is necessary
at the time of making a false or misleading representation
1.e. since inception. In criminal breach of trust, mere proof
of entrustment is sufficient. Thus, in case of criminal breach
of trust, the offender is lawfully entrusted with the property,

and he dishonestly misappropriated the same. Whereas, in
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case of cheating, the offender fraudulently or dishonestly
induces a person by deceiving him to deliver any property.
In such a situation, both the offences cannot co-exist

simultaneously.”
E.xi. The Court further observed that

“55. It is high time that the police officers across the country
are imparted proper training in law so as to understand the
fine distinction between the offence of cheating viz-a-viz
criminal breach of trust. Both offences are independent and
distinct. The two offences cannot coexist simultaneously in
the same set of facts. They are antithetical to each other.
The two provisions of the IPC (now BNS, 2023) are not

twins that they cannot survive without each other.”

E.xii. This proposition of law has been furthered in Arshad
Neyaz Khan v. State of Jharkhand, 2025 SCC
OnLine SC 2058. 1t is thus submitted that if cheating
and criminal breach of trust are fundamentally
antithetical, then the offence of forgery for the purpose
of cheating is as well antithetical to Criminal breach of

Trust.
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E.xiii. It is further submitted that none of the essential
elements of 471 are attracted in the present case. Even
assuming arguendo that Accused No. 3 was a signatory
to certain routine communications or documents in
the ordinary course of the company’s business, such

acts do not constitute “use of a forged document.”

E.xiv. To attract Section 471 IPC, it must be shown that the
accused used a document which was made to appear as
if it were executed by another person, thereby inducing
others to believe that it originated from someone else.
There is no such allegation or material in the present
case. None of the documents relied upon by the
prosecution purport to have been made on behalf of
any other person, nor do they falsely represent any

authority not possessed by the maker.

E.xv. Since the prosecution material does not disclose the
essential elements of making or using a forged

document, the charges under Sections 468 and 471 IPC

" [
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application of judicial mind, warranting interference

by this Hon’ble Court.

F. That there is nothing on record to attract the

charge of Criminal Conspiracy.

F.i. It is submitted that in order to bring home an
allegation of criminal conspiracy under Section 120-B
of the Indian Penal Code, the prosecution must satisfy
the essential elements of Section 120-A IPC, which

defines the offence. Section 120-A IPC reads:

“When two or more persons agree to do, or cause to be

done —
(a) an illegal act, or

(b) a legal act by illegal means, such an agreement is

designated a criminal conspiracy:

Provided that no agreement except an agreement to
commit an offence shall amount to a criminal conspiracy
unless some act besides the agreement is done by one or

more parties to such agreement in pursuance thereof.”
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F.iii.

F.iv.

il.

1il.

3R

The settled law, therefore, is that the essence of
conspiracy is the agreement itself. Mere knowledge,
discussion, or association with others is insufficient.
Unless there is clear evidence of a meeting of minds to

commit an illegal act, the offence is not constituted.

There is no material on record suggesting that Accused
No. 3 entered into any agreement or understanding
with any of the other accused persons for committing
any illegal act or for achieving a lawful act through

illegal means.

The charge-sheet and accompanying documents do not
disclose:

any meeting or communication where Accused No. 3
allegedly participated in planning or decision-making;
any correspondence evidencing a shared illegal
objective; or

any instruction or act showing that he was aware of or

agreed to any purported scheme.




F.v.

F.vi.

F.vii.

F.viii.
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Mere participation in the company’s ordinary business
activities, or the existence of professional or
commercial association with co-accused, cannot by
itself amount to conspiracy. The prosecution must
show intentional concurrence of purpose, which is

absent here.

The entire prosecution narrative proceeds on the basis
that Home Trade Ltd. entered into commercial
transactions with NDCC Bank. At best, these are acts
of the company in the course of business. To stretch
such dealings into a criminal conspiracy would offend
the principle that criminal liability must be founded on

intention and participation.

For conspiracy, the prosecution must also show the
requisite mens rea, a conscious decision to commit an
offence or to aid others in its commission. The record
is silent on any such state of mind attributable to

Accused No. 3.

The Learned Magistrate has fallen into error by merely

stating that there are “allegations of criminal
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conspiracy” without identifying what those allegations

are, where in the record such allegations exist, or

against whom such allegations are specifically directed.

The impugned order contains no reference to
communication, meeting, overt act, or circumstance
from the record indicating a meeting of minds
involving the petitioner. Consequently, the charge of
criminal conspiracy u/s 120-B IPC is wholly

unfounded.

THAT THERE CANT BE VICARIOUS

LIABILITY UNDER IPC.

It is respectfully submitted that the entire set of
allegations contained in the charge-sheet pertains to
the acts and transactions of HTL, the company
through which the dealings with NDCC Bank were
undertaken. Every document, correspondence, and
transaction on record is in the name of HTL, and not

in the personal name of Accused No. 3.

The prosecution has not alleged that the said funds

were paid to or retained by Accused No. 3 in his
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personal capacity. On the contrary, all payments were
made to HTL’s official accounts, and all documents
emanated from or were executed on behalf of the
company. The company, being a distinct legal entity, is
alone answerable for its acts done in the ordinary

course of business.

Though the company itself has not been arrayed as an
accused, the prosecution seeks to fix criminal liability
solely upon Accused No. 3, merely by virtue of his
position as one of its directors. Such prosecution is
impermissible in law and contrary to settled principles

governing corporate criminal liability.

The Indian Penal Code does not create or recognise the
concept of vicarious criminal liability except where
specifically provided by statute. In absence of a
statutory mandate, a director cannot be held
criminally liable for acts allegedly committed by the
company unless there is evidence of his personal role

and mens rea.
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G.v. In Sunil Bharti Mittal v. CBI, (2015) 4 SCC 609,
the Hon'ble Supreme Court authoritatively held that a
director or officer of a company cannot automatically
be held liable for offences committed by the company
unless there is sufficient evidence of his active role
coupled with criminal intent, or the statutory provision

itself specifically provides for vicarious liability.

G.vi. In GHCL Employees Stock Option Trust v.
India Infoline Ltd., (2013) 4 SCC 505, it was held
that a director cannot be proceeded against merely on
the basis of his designation or position in the company.
Specific acts and intent must be alleged and
established against him individually.

G.vii. In Delhi Race club (Supra), it is observed that

“When Appellant 1 is the Company and it is alleged that the
company has committed the offence then there is no
question of attributing vicarious liability to the office-
bearers of the Company so far as the offence of cheating or
criminal breach of trust is concerned. The office-bearers

could be arrayed as accused only if direct allegations are
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levelled against them. In other words, the complainant has

to demonstrate that he has been cheated on account of

criminal breach of trust or cheating or deception practised

by the office-bearers.”

G.viil.

G.ix.

The prosecution case, even if accepted at its highest,
relates entirely to the conduct of HTL in its dealings
with NDCC Bank. The alleged acts of omission or
commission are all in the name and on behalf of the
company. In such circumstances, the company is the
primary offender, and no liability can be fastened on a
director in isolation.

In Sunil Bharti (supra), the Supreme Court further
clarified that where the company is not made an
accused, the directors cannot be prosecuted for the

same offence.

Therefore, in the absence of charge against HTL,
continuation of criminal proceedings against Accused
No. 3 would be contrary to law and amounts to a

fundamental legal infirmity vitiating the prosecution.
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G.xi.

G.xiil.

G.xiil.

H.

Even otherwise, the charge-sheet does not attribute
any specific act, instruction, or decision to Accused No.
3 that constitutes the commission of any offence. The
allegations, at best, refer to the company’s transactions
or its internal decisions, without any evidence of

individual participation, knowledge, or intent.

The prosecution has also not alleged that Accused No.
3 derived any personal benefit or acted outside the
scope of his official role as a director. In such
circumstances, continuation of proceedings against the
Applicant would amount to penalising corporate office
per se, which is impermissible under the criminal law.

It is further submitted that the Ld. Magistrate has
failed to appreciate the true sense of the judgments
cited and differentiated them on irrelevant
considerations. It is thus submitted that in view of

absence of charge against the company, no charge

against the current Applicant can lie.

It is respectfully submitted that the allegations ‘. o

contained in the charge-sheet, even if taken at their
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5 face value, disclose at best a civil dispute arising
from a commercial transaction, and do not
constitute any criminal offence under the Indian
Penal Code. The invocation of criminal law in such
circumstances is impermissible and amounts to

abuse of process.

H.i. The Hon’ble Supreme Court, in a recent and strong
disapproval of the growing tendency to criminalise
civil and commercial disputes, observed in M/s
Shikhar Chemicals v. State of U.P., 2025 SCC

OnLine SC 1643, as under:

“The Magistrate unfortunately remained unmindful of the
fact that even as per the complainant’s own say the case is
one of sale of goods and recovery of some balance
amount... It was expected of the Additional CJM to know
that in a case of sale transaction where is the question of
any entrustment of goods so as to bring the case within the
ambit of criminal breach of trust punishable under Section

406 of the IPC. ... We are not taken by surprise with the

Magistrate exhibiting complete ignorance of law...
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However, we expected at least the High Court to

understand the fine distinction between the two offences...

It was expected of the High Court to know the well-settled

position of law that in cases of civil dispute a complainant

cannot be permitted to resort to criminal proceedings as

the same would amount to abuse of process of law.”

H.ii.

H.iii.

The Court emphatically reiterated the settled principle
that where the dispute arises from a commercial
contract, such as sale, supply, or investment
transactions, the remedy lies in civil law for recovery
or damages, not in criminal prosecution. The criminal
law cannot be used to enforce contractual obligations

or to pressurise parties in commercial dealings.

In the present case, the admitted position from the
charge-sheet and the documentary evidence is that the
transactions between NDCC Bank and Home Trade
Ltd. were commercial in nature, sale and purchase of
Government Securities conducted on a principal-to-
principal basis. The alleged failure to deliver securities

or honour payment, at the highest, gives rise to a civil
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liability. The allegations do not disclose dishonest
intention, deception, or any act done with criminal

mens rea.

The recourse to criminal prosecution in respect of such
transactions, especially where documentary evidence
establishes the existence of valid contractual terms,
arbitration clauses, and corporate records, is a clear
attempt to give a civil dispute a criminal colour.
Permitting such prosecution to continue would be
contrary to the well-settled distinction between civil
breach and criminal wrongdoing and would result in

grave miscarriage of justice.

In view of the foregoing, it is submitted that the
dispute between the parties is purely civil in nature,
arising from a contractual transaction, and does not
attract the ingredients of any of the penal provisions
alleged. The continuation of criminal proceedings in
such a matter is manifestly abusive and contrary to

settled law, and the same deserves to be quashed.
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In view of the facts emerging from the record, and for
the reasons set out in the foregoing grounds, it is
submitted that the impugned order dated 11.11.2025 has
been passed without proper appreciation of the legal
requirements under Sections 406, 409, 468, 471, 120-B
read with Section 34 IPC, and without applying the
standard of judicial scrutiny contemplated under

Section 239 of the Code of Criminal Procedure.

The Learned Magistrate has rejected the petitioner’s
discharge not on the basis of the statutory ingredients of
the alleged offences or the material placed on record,
but on presumptions, assumptions, and inadmissible
considerations. The rejection order therefore suffers
from illegality, material irregularity, and non-
application of judicial mind, thereby calling for
intervention by this Hon’ble Court in exercise of its
revisional jurisdiction.

The continuation of criminal proceedings against the
Applicant in absence of the essential legal ingredients of

the offences alleged would amount to abuse of the

T ——
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process of law and result in grave prejudice, hardship,
and injustice to the petitioner. The present case is
therefore a fit one where this Hon’ble Court may be
pleased to exercise its supervisory and corrective

jurisdiction to secure the ends of justice.

The impugned orders are dated 11/11/2025 and
26/11/2025. The revision is therefore filed within
period of limitation. The Hon’ble High Court directed
that, trial against Applicant be commenced by
conducting the same expeditiously and preferably on
day to day basis and the same be completed within a
period of four months after commencement of trial

against present Applicant.

The applicant undertakes to give the English translation
of Marathi documents as and when directed by this

Hon’ble Court.

The applicant seeks liberty to add, amend, modify or
delete any of the paragraphs or ground of the present

Criminal Revision as and when it is necessary.
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13.  The applicant has not filed any other application before
any other court, touching to the subject matter of this

Criminal revision.

14. The applicant has not filed any other application before
any other court, touching to the subject matter of this

Criminal revision Application.

15. The applicant undertakes to remove the office
objections, if any, as and when required.

PRAYER:-

A] That, Criminal Revision Application may kindly be
allowed

B]  Call for the records and proceedings pertaining to R.C.C.
No.573/2002 pending before the Court of the Learned 2nd

Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate, Nagpur;

C]  Quash and set aside the impugned order dated 11.11.2025
passed by the Learned 2nd Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Nagpur in R.C.C. No.147/2002, on the Applicant’s application
under Section 239 CrPC below exh 3666.;

D] Quash and set aside the impugned order dated 26.11.2025

passed by the Learned 2nd Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate,
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Nagpur framing charges against the applicant; and Discharge
the Applicant from the proceedings in R.C.C. No. 147/2002;

E] Pending hearing and final disposal of this Criminal
Revision Application, stay further proceedings in R.C.C. No.
147/2002 insofar as they concern the present applicant;

F] And/ or to grant any other relief to which Applicant is

found entitle to in the fact of the present case and law.

AND FOR THIS ACT OF KINDNESS THE APPLICANT, AS IN

DUTY BOUND, SHALL EVER PRAY.

AND FOR THIS ACT OF KINDNESS THE PETITIONER, AS IN

DUTY BOUND, SHALL EVER PRAY.

.NAGPUR =
DATE: 09.02.2026 COUNSEL FOR APPLICANT
(ADV. SAGAR LAMBAT)
SOLEMN AFFIRMATION

I, Sanjay Hariram Agrawal, Aged about 60 years, Occ.
Business, R/o. 7, Hari Seva Street, Kidderpore, Kolkata, do
hereby take an oath and state on the solemn affirmation that

the contents of above all Para’s 1 to 15 of the application
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including grounds are drafted by my counsel wholly as per my

instructions and the same are read over and explained to me in

my vernacular language which I have understood and I say and

submit:-

Hence verified and signed on this o9t day of February 2026 at

Nagpur.

NAGPUR

DATE: 09.02.2026

I know and identify the deponent

Advocate
(Adv. Sagar K. Lambat)

i e TSI e N g

S M ol
DEPONENT

Sworn before me on this Lg ’H‘ dt
£ . 2026 ngpurb'
L)

T e i
by ShvSmLIds. oS Lo

CANCELLED ~ANCELLED

NOTARIAL NOTARIAL

NOTARIAL

NOTARIAL - NOTARIAL
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUDICATURE AT BOMBAY;
NAGPUR BENCH, NAGPUR

CRIMINAL REVISION APPLICATION NO. OF 2026

DISTRICT : NAGPUR

Sanjay Hariram Agarwal. ...APPLICANT
(Original Accused)
Versus
State of Maharashtra ...RESPONDENTS

(Org. Applicant)

LIST OF ANNEXURES
Sr. | Anne Particulars Date Page
No. « No.
1 A |True copy of Application, | 09.01.2025
L
Exh. No. 3666 filed before
the 27d Addl. Chief Judicial
Magistrate Nagpur.
2 B | True copy of order passed by | 11.11.2025
the 2% Chief Judicial 79 -390
Magistrate (Spl. Court for S.
138 N.I. Act) Nagpur.
9 C | True copy of order passed by | 26.11.2025 31-9¢c
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the 27¢ Addl. Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Nagpur.

4 D | True copy of Contract Note. | 08.01.2026 9611

5 E | True copy of Balance Sheet

for 2000-2001. = 12 -1S |
NAGPUR COUNSEL §OR APPLICANT

DATED: 09.02.2026 (ADV.SAGAR KISHOR LAMBAT)
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IN THE COURT OF HON’BLE 2" ADD. CHIEF JUDICIAL
MAGISTRATE NAGPUR -

Reg. Cri. Case No. 147/2002

/IVERSUS//

STATE OF MAHARASHTRA I /
Zé o - 3666 /
SUNIL KEDAR & OTHERS =

APPLICATION UNDER SECTION 239 OF CODE OF CRIMINAL
PROCEDURE _FOR DISCHARGE OF ACCUSED NO.3 (
SANJAY HARIRAM AGRAWAL ) FOR OFFENCE PUNISHABLE
UNDER SECTION 406, 409, 467, 471, 34 120 B_OF INDIAN
PENAL CODE. IN CRIME NO.101 /2002 REGISTERED IN
GANESHPETH POLICE STATION.

The Applicant /Accused No.3 name above most

respectfully submit as under:-

: AThe Accused herein is facing trial under section 406.409, 467,471 34,

$)4) of fadian Penal Code R/W section 120 B Indian Penal Code which
,_ §\ registered vide crime No. 101/2002 in PSO Ganeshpeth
i agprThe accused has filed criminal Writ Petition before the Hon High
\ % ourt Nagpur Bench for challenging the impugned order dated 19.11.24
= /directing the prosecution to place on Record the Split Charge . The
\

%
\‘\’ " matter will be heard within two weeks in the High court . The accused

\05 has filed this application withfrut any prejudice to his right of the final

‘ AQQ \QSI\\W i
ol e

o\, 0%
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order in Writ Petition no 1009/24 —Sanjay V' State of Maharastra

B,The prosecution alleged case is Nagpur District Central Cooperative
Bank Ltd. (in short “the NDCC bank™) is a Co-operative bank having its
head office at Gandhisagar, Naik Chowk, Mahal, Nagpur. Its area of
operation is Nagpur district. It has separate board of directors. It is
governed by the provisions of the Maharashtra Co-operative Societies
Act, 1960(in short “the MCS Act”),Maharashtra Co-operative Societies
Rules, 1961(in short* the MCS Rules”),its own bye-laws, Banking laws
and directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India (in short “the RBI;’)
and National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (in short
“NABARD”)from time to time vide their circulars .Funds of the NDCC
bank are required to be invested in accordance with above laws.

(.Accused No.1 is the then Chairman of the NDCC bank where as
accused No.2 and 11 are the then General Manager and Chief Accountant |
respectively. The then employees of NABARD namely Deshmukh and
Das carried out statutory audit of NDCC bank covering period from
01/04/1999 to 31/03/2001. This inspection/audit was done from
04/02/2002 to 26/02/2002 as per guidelines issued by the RBI a:nd
NABARD .During inspection, they found that investment port-folio of '

the NDCC bank was increased notably. From 05/02/2001 to 28/03/2001
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NDCC bank had done various transactions of sale and purchase of
physical securities. As on31/03/2001 physical securities of Rs.124.76
crore were due to the NDCC bank. It was also found that there were many
irregularities and violations of legal provisions and also that of the
circulars issued by the RBI from time to time. On being asked to produce
physical securities for inspection only Xerox copies were put up before

them and those were also in the name of Home trade Limited (in short

“HTL”) and not of the NDCC bank.

' DIt was also revealed that till 31/03/2001 NDCC bank had entered into
transactions of government of India(in short “GOI”) securities only
through HTL, but thereafter transactions were also done through other
brokers like Indramani Merchants Private Limited, Calcutta, Syndicate
Management Services Private Limited, Ahmedabad, Century Dealers
Private Limited, Calcutta and Giltedge Management Services Limited,

~ Mumbai (hereinafter these four companies will be individually referred to
by their first name only i.e. ‘Endramani”, “Syndicate”, “Century Dealers”

and “Giltedge” as the case may bé -and whenever their collective

reference will be necessary, they will be referred as “4 broker

companies”). Accused No.3 to 10 were the directors/employees of HTL

3|Page
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and these 4 broker companies and were directly handling the transactions

in question.

[E-As on reference date of inspection about Rs.149.83 crore were due to
the NDCC bank towards GOI securities. Original GOI securities were
not produced before the inspection team till 26/02/2002. Accordingly,
detail inspection report was sent to the NDCC bank, RBI, Registrar of
Co-operative Societies and Maharashtra State Co-operative Bank

(inshort“MSCB”).

P Meanwhile as per directions given by Co-operative Commissioner and
Registrar, Co-operative Societies, State of Maharashtra, Pune vide letter
dated 20/04/2002, Divisional Joint Registrar, Co-operative Societies,
Nagpur vide letter dated 24/04/2002 directed the Special Auditor — Class
I (Bank) of Co- operative Societies, Nagpur, namely Bhaurao Vishwanath
Aswar ie. the informant to carry out inspection of sale and purchase
transactions of government securities in NDCC bank and some other

banks. s

(& Accordingly, the informant carried the inspection. He found that on
approval of accused No.1 and2 GOI security transactions were carried out
through HTL and 4 broker companies. Out of them, only HTL was the

authorized dealer of Security and Exchange Board of India (in short

ilPuage_
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“SEBI”). 4 other broker companies were not the authorized dealers of

SEBI.

B It was revealed in the inspection that during 25/01/2002 to 05/02/2002
total amount of about Rs.153.04 crores including premium and interest
was invested on behalf of NDCC bank towards purchase of government
(physical) securities through HTL and 4 other broker companies.
. Transactions about sale and purchase of government securities in physical
form were never brought to the notice of the board of directors and their
approval was never sought. Original government securities,.bonds,
holding certificates, receipts about investment of money etc. were also
- not available in the head office of the NDCC bank. Therefore, it was
~ doubtful whether the government securities were actually purchased or

not. All these transactions were were done at the instance of and with the
: aﬁproval of accused No.1 and I. Accused No.1 and 2 beigg Chairman and
- General Manager réSp'ec,tiyely, and in turn, being the bankers were
- entrusted to manage the funds of share holders and depositors. They were
morally as well legally responsible to strictly adhere to banking rules and
regulations while managing the financial affairs of the NDC(E bank.
However, they illegally invested these amounts through unauthorized

dealers without following prescribed legal mandate. These transactions

SIbraée
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were causing loss to the depositors and share holders. Hence, the
informant lodged report on 29/04/2002 in Ganeshpeth policestation,

Nagpur against accused persons.

SEPARATION OF TRIAL OF ACCUSED NO.3

i, It is submitted Sanjay Hariram Agarwal ( Accused No.3) filed 9
criminal applications under section 407 read with section 482 of Cr. P.

C. before Hon’ble Bombay High Court, Bombay for transfer of 9
criminal cases pending before various courts in state of Maharashtra to

one court in the city of Mumbai. That the 9 Criminal Applications
were placed before the Ld. Single Judge of Hon’ble Bombay High
Court, Bombay wherein on 25.11.2014 the Ld. single judge was
pleased to issue notice in five applications which related to cases
registered in Mumbai and Pune and for four other cases which related

to Wardha, Nagpur, Amravati and Osmanabz-i;:l an order was passed to
seek appropriate directions from the Chief Justice for continuance of :':,1 | |
the said Applications at Princip‘ai éeat at Bombay as they fall within : 3 /

the jurisdiction of other benches of the High Court. That Criminal

Application No. 628 of 2014 for transfer of RCC number 147 of 2002 - i
from Nagpur to Bombay came up for hearing on 19.12.2014 before

the Ld. Single Judge of Hon’ble Bombay High Court, at Mumbai
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pursuant to permission/ liberty granted by Hon’ble Chief Justice. The
Ld. Single Judge vide order dated 19 December 2014 issued notice
and granted ad interim relief as prayed in prayer clause (b) which was
for stay of the trial in RCC number 147 of 2002. That although the
PIL 25/2014 was disposed of an application again came to be filed by
the petitioner therein in which the Hon’ble Bombay High Court,
Nagpur Bench vide order dated 06.04.2018 was pleased to order that
thel grant of interim order in favor of petitioner ( Accused No 3 herein
) and Ordered that the transfer case of Accused No 3 , shall not come
in the way of learned trial judge to conduct the trial, except against the
person [Sanjay Hariram Agarwal] in whose case the order is passed by

the learned Single judge of the Hon’ble Bombay High court. The

relevant para is quoted herein below: - “CORAM: B.R. GAVAI AND

f M.G GIRATKAR,
1 \‘

VA

Date:6/4/2018

1

o ’5\’ ’*-a

Para 4. We therefore clarify that the said order would not come in the

way of learned trial judge to conduct the trial, except against the
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person in whose case the order is passed by the learned Single Judge

of this Court at Bombay.”

I It is submitted that there after that the trial of other accuéed will
continue expect accused No. 3 (Sanjay H. Agrawal ) and Accused No.10
Kanan Mewala . Also Hon’ble 2 ACIM Nagpur then continued that
Trial for all the above accused except Accused No 3 and 10 and‘then after
completing the Trial passed Judgment and Ofder dated 23/12/2023
.Thereafter the present Applicant ( Accused No 3 ) was called to start
the Trail . After go through the entire charge sheet and evidence
recorded during trail it prime facie appears that no case made out
against the present applicant . It may be n.otediﬁlraf ﬁﬁcstigaﬁon ofticer
failed to understand the exact nature of the several transactions

between Accused and NDCC bank .Also specially investigation

: $ . : 2,
officer and all his record are based on faulty and incomplete, = <%,
b SNy
ek Ot
investigation and inadequate documents and facts which do the not pass \\ o
%

the muster of judicial scrutiny

J. It is submitted that, the investigation officer, investigated the present
case in an improper way and his conclusions about the transaction

between accused and NDCC to Hometrade as an agent while on the

élPage
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contrary the situation of the transaction was between NDCC and

Hometrade as a Buyer and Seller. Hometrade never acted as a

 broker with NDCC . Hometrade always acted in the capacity of a

Purchaser or Seller and never in the capacity of an Agent. The I0
has in the entire charge has investigated Hometrade as an Agent

which is absolutely Incorrect . Hometrade was always a trader doing

the business buying and selling of securities .

K. It is evident from Exhibit no. 1964i.e. Annual Report of HTL for

Financial Year 2000-2001, that HTL has not reported any income from

“Broking” activity during the year 2000-2001. Whereas HTL had made a
gain of Rs. 66.80 Crores on sale of investment/securities. Thus HTL, as a
apart of business decision stopped its broking business and fully engaged
in proprietary trading/investment of shares and securities.It is further

submitted that the As per Exhibit No. 1273,1274,1275,1276.1277,

1278.1279.1280 and all other contract notes exhibited in the evidence,

the transactions in questions were executed between NDCCB and HTL

~on “PRINCIPAL-TO-PRINCIPAL” basis therefore question of the

physical allotment of the GOI does not arise. In the aforesaid contract

notes, as mentioned and printed on the Contract Notes , Counter Party

Participant (CPN) BOX in the contract note is “Home Trade” and

Brokerage (BR) column in the contract note is “Blank”. Thus, HTL had
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acted as “Proprietary Trader” and not as __“Agent/Broker”. It is evident

o

from the contract notes that “NO BROKERAGE” had been charged. In
the given case of all transactions between Hometrade and NDCC , the
relationship between both the parties were Of “Principal Buyer” and
“Principal Seller”. Hence, the settlement of the transactions was a
relationship of “Debtor” and «Creditor” between the parties. Thus,
recipient (HTL) of the amount did not receive the amount from NDCCB
in “Fiduciary Capacity”i.e. as Broker or agent of NDCCB, but towards
settlement of payment for purchase of secur_i_ties for which it was obliged
to deliver the Government Securities oﬁl_y.
b The beneficial ownership in the 1¥10ney so paid was intended to be
transferred to HTL. In the given case as per well settled legal position the
question of “ENTRUSTM_ENT” does not arise and therefore, the required
" ingredient to constitute an offence under S. 405, 406, 409 of TPC were
completely missing. Hence, the present matter was a civil case and ought
e
to have been adjudicated for “Breach of Contract” under Arbitration Act
and not under criminal law for «“Criminal Breach of Trust”. Reliance is
placed on “State v. Tirath Das” AIR-1954 ALLAHBAD 583 (Vol 41, C .

N 227),AND _“The State .v. Jage Ram” AIR (38) 1951 PUNJAB 103”.

M There is nothing on record to show that HTL wag not/a member of

The National Stock Exchange Of India (herem after referred as “NSE”)
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and therefore was not authorized to issue such contract notes. There is
nothing on record to suggest that the contract notes issued by HTL were

legally not enforceable and hence invalid.

On the contrary SEBI vide, its letter dated 9.8.2002 being Exhibit 1831
had confirmed that HTL was SEBI registered member of NSE. The

Reserve Bank of India (herein after referred as “RBI”) vide its letter

- dated 7" October, 2002 (being Exhibit no.1583/1) had confirmed that
HTL was registered in their books for -its dealing in Government
Securities vide registration No. 6-H/83. Thus, there was no restriction
either from NSI% or RBI on “Off Market Principal to Principal trades”
e:{ecuteci' by HTL with NDCCB. There is nothing on record to show that |
HTL being a member of NSE was not allowed to do “Off Market Trades”

on “Principal to Principal” basis or there was any limit restrictions for

‘such transactions.

; h

/ N PW-51: Dr. Golak Chandra Nath in his deposition has deposed that

the trades which are settled outside NSE are off market trade. HTL was
" not enabled for trading on their platform. He deposed that he does not
know whether these companies were authorized to deal with government
securities out of WDM platform. Therefore, he had only forwarided the

information of transactions pertaining to WDM platform.
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@ It is pertinent to mention that the platform referred in the above para
means the “NSE online porti_l”, which was merely a facility, availed to its
members for doing 0111;16 trading with unknown buyers/sellers/ﬁlembers.
«Off market trades” were done outside NSE online portal by and between
the member of NSE and the buyer/seller already known to each othef and
who wanted to deal in sccuritie.s on the mutually acceptable
delivery/payment terms. .

As evident there is nothing on record to suggest that HTL being a
member of NSE was restricted from undertaking “Off market trades” on
“Principal to Principal” basis. It is pertinent to note that “HTL” being a

member of multiple stock exchanges and in particular being a member of

NSE was entitled to do Arbitrage; - jobbing, proprietary trading,

market etc.
. : ;C} 254
/=3 Thus, Broking activity was just a one of the business options available '&@ LN
5 ) ) = ."TSﬂ

to HTL being a member of NSE. The entire investigation and Audit by Qiﬁ“‘i

the Original Complainant (P.W.-1) had been conducted and based on the

Y presumption that HTL had acted as “broker” in its dealing with NDCCB.

12-1Page




6 F

Since, the presumption and conclusion drawn by 1.O. are BASED ON
WRONG SET OF ASSUMTIONS , the entire proceeding in the present
- criminal case trail is vitiated.

As per the FIR no. 97/02 dated 25.04.2002 filed by the Ex-Chairman of
NDCCB, five companies were named in the said FIR as accused. On the
same cause of action, the second FIR no. 101/02 was filed on 29.04.2002
| _by Mr._Bhaurav Vishwamanth Aswar. As per the second FIR along with
the Chairrﬁan & General Manager of NDCCB, the five companies named
in the FIR dated 25.04.2002 were also named in the second FIR.
However, for inexplicable reasons no charge sheet has been filed against
these five companies by the 1.0. Non-filing of charge sheet against all
t these Comﬁanies has made the entjre_‘crimjnal proceedings sensitively

vulnerable and non-tenable against the other accused No.3 .
. P., As per the charges .’in the Charge Sheet the main offence alleged to had
| been committed is of “Criminal Breach of Trust” and for which the
charge had been framed u/s 406, 409, r/w 34 & 120-B of IPC. It is
pertinent to note that as per the facts placed on record the amounts

alleged to had been misappropriated by the accused were entrusteci‘:by the

‘Depositors and Shareholders of NDCCB, to NDCCB. It is undisputed that
NDCCB is a registered “Legal entity” and a “juristic person” having an

independent legal identity. In other words there was no entrustment to the
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' accused directors and office bearer of the NDCCB. Similarly, NDCCB
issued cheques/transferred amounts directly to HTL’s Bank account for
purchase of Government Securities. It is undisputed that HTL is a
registered “Legal entity” and a “juristic person” having an independent

legal identity. In other words. there was no_entrustment to_the accused

directors and office bearer of the HTL. It is pertinent to note that all the

Contract Notes were issued and executed on behalf of HTL to NDCCB.
Thus, the privity of Contract was between HTL and NDCCB.

&\ . Asper well settled law the alleged entrustment was to NDCCB and
from NDCCB to HTL. As per the facts recorded in the evidence the
alleged “Principal Offenders” in the present case WeIe NDCCB and

'_ HTL to whom the émounts were allegedly entrusted and who allegedly
misappropriated the entrusted amount.
However, for the inexplicable reasons nﬁ:j:t_t__lef' NDCCB nor HTL had been
Charge Sheeted nor any Charge has been framed against them. Non
consideration of this very vital fact made the criminal proceedings
sensitively vulnerable. Hence, as per the ratio laid down by the Hon’ble
 Apex Court in «Sharad Kumar Sanghi Vs. Sangita Rane” (2015) 12

scc 781 Para 9, 11 &13. AND “R.Kalyani Vs. Janak C. Mehta and

Others” (2009) 1 SCC 516 Para 41 AND Judgement of High- Court of

Jammu & Kashmir And Ladakh Pronounced on 21.52022 in CRM(M)
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No. 263/2020 in the matter of Sandeep Singh &Ors Vs. Nisar Ahmad
Dar, arrangingNDCCB and HTL as main accused was mandatory to
procced with the trial.

U.Non consideration of this very vital facts has vitiated the entire
proceedings. The Hon’ble Supreme Court in the matter of -“S.K.Alagh y
State of U.P. & others, (2008) 5 SCC 662" in Para 13, 14, 16, 17, 18 &
19 has held that: ‘

. “As, admitted, drafts were drawn in the name of the Company, even, if
the appellant was its Managing Director, he cannot be said to have
committed an offence u/s 406 of IPC. If and when aq Statute
contemplates creation of such a legal fiction, it provides specifically
therefor. In absence of any provision laid down under the statute, a
director of a company or an employee cannot be held to be vicariously
liable for any offence com_mitted by the Company. itself.”

vrThus, LO. completely misconstrued the well settled law and filed the
-charge sheet in gross coﬂtravention of the ratio laid down by the Hon’ble
3 Supreme Couﬁ in the above judgement. That in the entire evidence there
is no unanimity about what €xact amount was allegedly misappropriated
: by the accused. i

[% ; Different PW.s had given completely different amounts of

- misappropriation. The 1.O. in his deposition has admitted that he himself
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has not studied the transactions and bank statement details but he had

e’

completely relied on outsourced CA firm and accepted their finding as
gospel truth without application of his own independent mind. The main
crux of the investigation was to bring on record the exact authentic
amount of alleged misappropriation which L.O. completely failed to
achieve.

é . It is pertinent {0 mention that during the inve.stigation the 1.O. had
sought some clarification vide his letter dated 28.05.2002 (being Exhibit

" no. 1577) from the RBI about whether the securities mentioned in his
letter had been purchased for NDCCB by HTL. In response, the RBI in
its letter dated 16.10.2002 being Exhibit 1578-1 to 1587-3 in Para (2)
had categorically mentioned that:

« . Inview of this, a possibility that the companies mentioned by you in "

SO
W -

your letter, are holding investments as gilt account holders in the books oty

§ | o
of some CSGL account cannot be ruled out. It would therefore bé\

appropriate 10 approach such of the panks/institution which may be
maintaining the Gilt accounts of these comﬁanies, for further
information relating to transactions mentioned by you in your letter.
Incidentally, from a secondary sources of information we are aware
that M/s. Home Trade Ltd. and _Giltedge Management Services Ltd. are
maintaining the Gilt Accounts with HDF C Bank Ltd. amf Federal
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Bank Ltd. As already indicated more accounts being maintained by all

of these companies elsewhere with the banks/institutions cannot be

ruled out.”

From the above para it is clear that RBI had advised the 1.0. to
approach HDFC Bank Ltd and Federal Bank Ltd where HTL was
’maintaining “Gilt Accounts” (D-mat account of Government securities)
_and _also investigate in this direction to find HTL’s other acct;;lnts
maintained elsewhere with banks and institutions. The L.O. in Para 236

of his deposition has admitted that he has not seized Gilt Account

statements from HDFC and Federal Bank. Thus, despite the specific

f_nformarion and advice given by RBI the LO. did not do any

investigation to bring correct facts on_records about HTL’s complete

holding of Government Securities. Thus, the conclusion arrived at by 1.0,
is based upon incomplete facts, would he conducted his thorough
| -Investigation based on the inputs given by RBI he would have come to

completely different conclusion about total purchase and holding of

: - government securities of HTL with respect to the securities sold to
"V\D@/ . NDCCB’- from time to time. The prosecution has utterly failed to bring on
record the Gilt Transactions done by HTL through its CSGL (D-mat)

account with Federal and HDFC Bank before this Hon’ble Court
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deliberately & benefit of the same needs to be given to the accused and

A-9 deserves to be acquitted. Thus, the conclusion arrived at by LO. that
HTL never purchased any securities for NDCCB is based upon
incomplete investigation. The evidence of 1.0. based on incomplete

investigation, thus vitiated the entire proceedings.

It is an admitted fact that the contract notes issued by HIL had an

—4

“Arbitration Clause” in it. It is further admitted by 1.O. in his deposition

in Para 221 that as per contract notes, in case of any dispute including any
question relating to the vyalidity and enforceability of the contract notes
the reference tO NSE arbitration for adjudication of dispute was
mandatory. However, for inexplicable reasons NDCCB has refrained
from filing any Arbitration Application before the agreed forum at
Mumbai for ad]udlcatmn 0?&1;.: d13p1ited transactions forming part of the
Criminal Complaint filed in the police station. It is pertinent to note that /‘/:
from the evidence on record this matter is not a Case of criminal breach of :
trust but predominanﬂy itisa Ifla“er_gi_??fifﬁ _of contract which is a civﬂ\\\\

"‘f-‘ 3 X X
=

wrong and thus it ought to have been adjudicated before the arbitrator of

the NSE.

W The Act of signing contract notes, letters and cheques for and on

behalf of HTL (Employer)while discharging official duty does not fall
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within the ambit of any of the section under IPC. The act of signing
documents such as contract notes, letters and cheques for and on behalf of
the employer company being an employee as “Au@pﬁ;ed Signature”
does not fall within the ambit of S. 464 of IPC which defines meaning of

false documents. Making of any false document, in view of the definition

of “forgery” is the sine qua non thereof.

/

-

\|. . What would amount to making of a false document is specified in S.

s,

464 of IPC. What is, therefore, necessary is to execute a document with
the intention of causing it to be believed that such rdocument inter alia
was made by the ﬁuthority of a person by whom or by whose authority he
knows that is not made. It is pertinent to note that mere preparation of

document under ones own signature and writing by making false

‘averments therein does not fall within definition of forgery. The condition

precedent for an offence under Sections 467 and 471 is forgery. The

“condition precedent for forgery is making a false document (or false

electromc record or part thereof. This case does not relate to any false

electromc record) In short, a person is said to have made a “false
document”, if (1) he made or executed a document claiming to be
someone else or authorised by someone clse; or (i) he altered or

tampered a document; or (111) he obtained a document by practicing
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deception, or from a person not in control of his senses. But to fall under
first category of “false documents”, it is not sufficient that a document
has been made or executed dishonestly or fraudulently. There is a further
requirement that it should have been made with the intention of causing it
to be believed that such document \#as made or executed by, Or by the
authority of a person, by whom or by whose authority he knows that it
was not made or executed. If there is no forgery, then neither Section 468
nor Section 471 of the Code are attracted. To constitute an offence under
section 471 of IPC, first an offence u/s 468 of IPC has to be established.
The 1.0. in Para 132 of his deposition has stated about Xerox copies of
the forged documents being prepared by Kanan Mevawala of HTL. The
1.O. in Para 211,212 & 213 has stated about the role of Kanan Mevawala
and he categorically stated that he did not investigate how the XeroX

copies of the forged documents reached to NDCCB at Nagpur.

tAL.: He further stated that he did not investigate to know how these
copies reached at NDCCB as he felt that it was not important for him to
do so. It pertinent to note that during the trial none of the PW’s working

' in NDCCB have deposed of having ever seen xerox copies of the alleged

( forged documents referred by the 1.0. Thus, how all of a sudden these

copies surfaced 1is unsolved mystery, whicﬁ speak volumes. Thus, it
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shows that investigation carried out by 1.0. was incomplete and hence

conclusion based upon such investigation is unreliable,

K It is pertinent to mention that the whole investigation done by 1.O.

is misleading and devoid of facts because it is suffering from the
following serious flaws and infirmities -
T}VI.O. has investigated the matter on the belief that HTL had acted as
“Broker” in its dealing with NDCCB, Whereas 1.O. in Para 239 of his
depositiénhas admitted that the transactions between HTL & NDCCB
were én “Principal to Principal” basis.

. During the Investigation the 1.O. had seized one statement furnished by

NDCC_B being Exhibit no. 1475. The Title of this statement is Details of

the cheques received in the matter of Physical Securities.

The 1.O. had also seized copies of the cheques mentioned in this

statement and all these cheques have been marked as Exhibit nos.

1281.1282,1283,1284, 1285, 1286, 1287, 1288, 1289, 1290 ),1291.These

, cheques were dated 24.04.2002 issued by all the accused compamesto

; _;NDCCB the total value of all these cheques was more than Rs.124.29

- Crores.

2.The 1.O. in Para 238 of his deposition has admitted that for what

purpose these cheques were issued to NDCCB that he has not
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investigated. Thus, once again 1.O failed to investigate on the very‘
important evidence seized by him during the investigation. However, 1.0.
admitted in Para 49 of his deposition that all these cheques Were
deposited by NDCCB and the same WeCIC returned unpaid by the
respective drawers’” banks. The L.O. further mentioned that NDCCB had
filed 10 cases against the issuer companies under The Negotiable
Instruments Act. ‘
Thus, 1.O. was duty bound to enquire and investigate what was the under
lying consideration for which all these cheques Were issued to and
accepted by NDCCB. However, LO. did not find it mecessary tO
investigate in this direction and to bring correct facts on record as to why
all these cheques WEIC accepted and deposited by NDCCB. The facts as
appear from the statement and cheques referred above, the NDCCB had
sold its entire portfolio of investment in Government Securities purchased
' from the respective companies (Principal to Principal transactlons) at the

current market price and got the cheques towards the sale consideration.

°>l. Thus, after acceptance of all these cheques the NDCCB had only
money claim against all the drawers of the cheques. Had the LO.
. investigated in this direction his conclusion about the case would have

been totally different..The L.O. in Para 791 of his deposition has admitted

i_zil'?age
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that all the contract notes issued by HTL to NDCCB were subject to
“MANDATORY ARBITRATION CLAUSE”, which means reference to
Arbitrator of NSE at Mumbai for adjudication of disputed issueswas one
of the pre-requites to initiate any further proceedings against the accused

person. It is an admitted fact that the transaction between Euro Discover

,India Ltd and NDCCB was of loan against shares. It is also an admitted

fact that the said loan was fully repaid along with agreed interest. The

PW-18 Sheshrao Shamrav Gonde stated that the Loan transactions and

Government Securities transactions were totally different. From the
Adjustment letters issued by HTL to NDCCB it is clearly evident that

NDCCB was having a running account with HTL. Which means

- settlement of amount was not done on per contract basis but after taking

%’

&

a4

into consideration all the Purchase and sales transactions entered on a

. particular date only differential amount determined as per the adjustment

letter was paid by the respective party.

[ -_‘
. Z
.

Thus, 1.O. failed to understand and appreciate the meaning of running
account and its functionality. It submitted that the Applicant/Accii;v.ed is
peace loving and law abiding citizen and belong to respected family.

There is no direct evidence as well as no prima facie case made out

against the Applicant in entire charge sheet and evidence on record.
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circumstance and evidence

Therefore in the view of the above facts and

on record the accused no 3 needs t0 be DISCHARGED FROM THIS

PRESENT CASE

Hence this application

PRAYER : Itis therefore most respectfully Prayed that
A Disc hax J 4 g—-'-
"% ;,} low this application and Accused No 3&from the present case .

ther reliefs needs to be granted as per facts and circumstanced of
Sy W'\b"} APM
PICANT
/ Fi —
St x

SOLEMN AFFIRMATION

Sk - Sanjay Hariram Agarwal Age 59 , occupation business R/O Kolkata do

-:'ereby offirm that the contents of the above para are true and correct as
my personal knowledge and belief !

s }é same is read over to me and found to be correct . \

ence verified on 9" January 2025 T
SWORN EMNLY AFFIR \\/y\»rk)\ Y
BY My oY/ tegom, Deponent
e | Q%’aauu,/ Hon ( } . Sl
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MHNG030023772002 RCC No. 3030147/2002
E.:l ml . . State -- Vs — Sunil & Ors
=

ER BELOW '

This is an application made by accused No.3 for discharge
under Section 239 of the Code of Criminal Procedure (for short ‘the

CeEC.).

2 The application is running into 24 pages. The sum and
substance thereof is to the effect that, no case is made out against
accused No.3 for framing of charge. The Investigating Officer has
failed to understand the exact nature of several transactions between
the accused and the Nagpur District Central Co-operative Bank (for
short “the NDCC Bank”). The transactions between the NDCC Bank
and M/s. Home Trade Limited (for short “HTL”) are in the capacity of
buyer and seller, respectively and not as a broker (agent). HTL has
never derived any income from “broking” activity during the year

2000-2001.

3 It is further contended that, the contract notes between
NDCC Bank and the HTL were executed on “Principal to Principal”
basis, therefore, the question of physical allotment of Government of
India Securities (for short ‘GOI securities’) would not arise. Thus, the
settlement of transactions between the NDCC Bank and the HTL were
the relationship of “Debtor” and “Creditor”. In short, according to

accused No.3, the dispute between the NDCC Bank and the HTL is of
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civil nature.

4, It is further contendéd.that, the amount alleged to have
been misappropriated by the accused persons was entrusted by the
depositors and share holders of the NDCC Bank to the NDCC Bank
and not the HTL. In short, according.to accused No.3, there was no
entrustment to the directors and office bearers of the HTL. The NDCC
bank and the HTL have not been arrainged as accused in the present
case. According to accused No.3, it was mandatory to arraign the

NDCC bank and the HTL as accused.

5. It is further contended that, the Investigating Officer has
not conducted investigation in respect of the complete holdings of
Government Securities by the HTL as per the advice of the Reserve
Bank of India. Thus, the conclusion arrived by the Investigating
Officer is based upon iﬁcomplete facts. The contract notes issued by
the HTL had an ‘Arbitration Clause’. The NDCC Bank has refrained
from initiating arbitration proceedings for inexplicable reasons. The
dispute between the NDCC Bank and the HTL is not case of criminal
breach of trust, but, predominantly it is the matter of breach of
contract which is a civil wrong and thus, it ought to have been

adjudicated before the Arbitrator of the National Stock Exchange.

6. It is further contended that, the act of signing contract
notes, letters and cheques for and behalf of HTL while discharging
official duty does not fall within the ambit of any offence under the
Indian Penal Code (for short ‘the IPC’). In other words, according to

accused No.3, the signing of contract notes, letters and cheques by
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" him on behalf of HTL would not amount to making false documents.

Thus, according to accused No.3, the offences punishable under
Section 467 and 471 of the IPC in respect of the alleged forgery

would not be attracted against him. None of the prosecution

‘witnesses workmg with the NDCC bank have deposed of having ever

seen photocopies of the alleged forged documents referred by the

investigating officer. Thus, investigation carried out by the

: Investlgatmg officer was mcomplete and thus the conclusion based

upon ‘such’ investigation is unreliable. On these grounds, accused

No.3 has prayed for allowing the application. "

Tl The Ld. Special APP has filed reply at Exh.3690. It is

‘submitted that, the charge-sheet was filed in the year 2002 after

carrying out a detailed investigation. The accused had received copy
of charge-sheet. However, he did not choose file an app11cat10n for
discharge at the earhest He has not raised any objection in respect of
the investigation till the date of f111ng present application, i.e., from
the year 2002 to the year 2023. One of the partner of the HTL has

been convicted by this Court on the basis of same charge-sheet.

8. It is further submitted that, the accused can not seek
discharge by relying upon the evidence recorded in the course of trial
of other accused persons. The application has been made only in
order to protract the trial. On these major grounds, the Special APP

has prayed for rejection of the application.

9. Heard Shri PA.Tamboli and Smt. Kamana Divya Sree, the
Ld. Advocates for accused No.3. Heard Ld. Special APP for the State.
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Accused No.3 has also filed written notes of arguments at Exh.3717,
The oral submissions made by the Ld. Advdcates for accused No.3 are
nothing but repetitiori of submissions in the written notes of
arguments. The said stibmissions would be referred at appropriate
places hereinafter. In sﬁpport of his submissions, accused No.3 has

relied upon the following decisions.

i) Delhi Race Club (1940) Ltd. & Ors. Vs. State of Uttar
Pradesh & Anr 2024 INSC 626,

i) Shikhar Chemicals V. State of Uttar Pradesh and Another
2025 SCC OnLine SC 1643

iii)  Mohdmmed Ibrahim and Others Vs. State of Bihar and
Another (2009) 8 Supreme Court Cases 751

#v)  Sunil Bharti Mittal Vs. Central Bureau of Investigation
(2015) 4 Supreme Court Cases 609

v)  GHCL Employees Stock Option Trust Vs. India Infoline
Limited (2013) 4 Supreme Court Cases 505

10. In the application under consideration, accused No.3 has
referred following decisions. However, he has not produced copies of

the said decisions.

1. State Vs. Tirath Das, AIR 1954 ALLAHBAD 583 (Vol 41,
CN227)

2. The State Vs. Jage Ram, AIR (38) 1951 PUNJAB 103

3. Sharad Kumar Sanghi Vs. Sangita Rane (2015) 12 SCC 781
Para 9, 11 & 13.

4. R.Kalyani Vs. Janak C. Mehta and Others (2009) 1 SCC 516
Para 41

5. Sandeep Singh & Ors Vs. Nisar Ahmad Dar. in CRM(M)
No.263/2020 decided on 21.05.2022 by the Hon’ble Jammu and

Kashmir High Court.
6. S.K.Alagh Vs. State of U.P & Others, (2008) 5 SCC 662.

11L Following points arise for my consideration to which I
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have recorded my findings with reasons thereunder.

I8N |- 7 poifms FINDINGS
1.  |Whether the charge against | ,
" |accused No.3 is groundless ? No
2. [What order ? | Application is rejected.
: REASONS :
12, The Ld. Advocate for accused No.3 submitted that, the

contract notes do not menﬁon ‘that, the HTL is a broker. The balance
sheets of HTL do not show any income from the alleged broking
activity. In short, according to the Ld. Advocates, the transactions
between the NDCC Bank and the HTL were on ‘principal to principal’
basis, thus, the HTL or accused No.3 can not be held to be broker or

an agent as regard to application of Section 409 of the IPC.

13. The Ld. Advocate for accused No.3 further submitted
that, the relationship between the NDCC Bank and the HTL is of
buyer and seller, thus, the question of entrustment of property would
no arise. In fine, according to the Ld. Advocate, the ingredients of
Section 405 of the IPC are not made out against accused No.3. In
support of said submissions, the Ld. Advocate has placed reliance
upon the decisions in Delhi Race Club(1940) Ltd. and Ors. (Supra)
and Shikhar Chemicals (Supra).

14. The Ld. Advocate for accused No.3 further submitted
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that, the dispute between the NDCC Bank and the HTL is purely of
civil nature. It was further submitted that, the NDCC Bank was
required to initiate Arbitration proceedings as per the Arbitration

¢lause in the contract notes.

15, | The Ld. Advocate for accused No.3 further submitted
that, the letters issued on behalf of the HTL under signatures of
accused No.3 can not be termed as false documents. It was further
submitted that, even if the contents of said letters are assumed to be
false, the said letters can not be termed as forged documents. In
support of said submissions, the Ld. Advocate has placed reliance

upon the decision in Mohammed Ibrahim and Ors (Supra).

16. The Ld. Advocate for accused No.3 further submitted
:iti’at,ﬂaccu'sed NS.B being director of the HTL can not be prosecuted
unless the HTL is made an accused in the present case. It was
submitted that, the transactions in question were between the NDCC
Bank and the HTL, thus, accused No.3 can not be held vicariously
liable. In support of said submissions the Ld. Advocate has relied
upon the decisions in Sunil Bharti Mittal (Supra) and GHCL
Employees Stock Option Trust (Supra).

17 The Ld. Spl APP submitted that, accused No.4 who is
director of the HTL has been convicted vide Judgment dated
22.12.2023 on the same set of facts. It was further submitted that,
there is sufficient material on record for framing charge against
accused No.3. It was lastly submitted that, the decisions cited on

behalf of accused No.3 can not be made applicable to the case at
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‘hand owing to non-identical facts and circumstances.

18. - The charge-sheet has been filed for offénces ptinisha:tﬂe

under Section 406, 409, 468, 471, 120B 1/w 34 of the IPC. After

' carrying out inveétigation, the Investigating Officer has arrived at the

following conclusion in respect of accused No.3.
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19. - .There are statements of several witnesses and voluminous
documentary evidence prima facie in support of the aforesaid
conclusmn drawn by the Investigating Ofﬁcer agalnst accused No.3.
Accused Nos.1, 2, 4, 7, 8 and 9 have been convicted for offences
punishable under Section 406, 409, 471, 468’ read with 120B of the
IPC Vrde Judgment dated 22.12. 2023 No doubt, the observatlons and
ﬁndmgs in the judgment of conviction dated 22 12, 2023 can not be
used for convicting present accused. However the observauons and
fmdmgs in para Nos.39, 42, 43, 57, 63, 74, 77, 138, 139; 141 146
and 147 are relevant for the consrderatron of present apphcatron The
said pbservatrons and flndrngs go to_ sh{qw the role of accused No.3 in

the commission of alleged offences.

. . B 1s significant to note that, there are a]legatrons of
criminal consplracy between all the accused persons for the purpose
of commrttmg the alleged illegal acts. Thus even assummg that, the
HTL was not either a broker or an agent, yet due to the charge of
criminal conspiracy, the offences punishablé under Sections 406 and

409 ;of the -IPC'WOuld be prima facie attracted against accused No.3.

2Lz As regard to the offence of forgery; there are allegations
in respect of presentauon of photocoples of GOI Securities which

were found to be ferged Thus it can not be said that, there is no
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material for framing charge against accused No.3 for offences

punishable under Section 468 and 471 of the IPC,

22. 1 have carefully gone through the decisions cited on
hehalf of accused No.3. In the cases of Delhi Race CIub (1940) Ltd.
and Ors. and Shikhar Chemicals, the transactions in‘ questions were
in respect of sale of goods and failure to make payment thereof.
However, that is not the position in the case at hand.’ As discussed
above, the allegations against acctised No.3 are in respect of hatching
of a criminal conspiracy for the purpose of misappropriation of public
money and also forgery. As such, it can not be said that, the dispute
between the NDCC Bank and accused No.3 or the HTL is purely civil
in nature. Thus, the aforesaid decisionslarid_the decisions referred by
accused No.3 in para T. (page No.10) can not be made squarely
applicable to the case at hand owing to non identical facts and

circumstances.

23, In the case of Mohammed Ibrahim and Ors., it was held
that, the sale deed executed by the first appellant can not be termed
as a false document. In the present case, as discussed above, there are
allegations in respect of preparing false GOI Securities and presenting
photocopies thereof. Thus, it can not be said that, the charge of
forgery against accused No.3 is groundless. At the cost of repetition,
it is necessary to mention that, there are allegations of criminal
conspiracy against accused No.3 as well. Thus, the aforesaid decision
can not be made squarely applicable to the case at hand owing to non

identical facts and circumstances.
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24, ' In the case of Sunil Bf:&zﬁ Mittal (.io’upra) the principle of
“alter .ego” was apphed in reverse scenario. In the said case, the
company was an accused and the dlrectors were made accused by
applying the pr1nc1p1e of alter ego However, that is not the position
in the case at hand In the present case, there are allegations of
criminal consplracy against accused No.3 Who is director of the HTL.
Under the facts and circumstances of present case it can not be said
that accused No.3 can not be prosecuted unless the HTL is made an
accused in the present case. Thus, the decisions in Sunil Bharti Mittal
(supfaj GHCL Emp]oyees Stock Option Trust (Supra) and the
decisions referred by accused No.3 in para ‘Q’ (page No.14 & 15) can
\ not be made squarely applicable to the case at hand owmg to non

1denUca1 facts and circumstances.

25, It is signiﬁcant to note that, by order below Exh.1 dated

30.04.2024, my Ld. Rredecessor has come to a.conclusion that, there
is sufficient material to frame charge against accused No.3 under
Section 406, 409, 468, 471 read with Section 120B of the IPC in
alternative read W1th Sectlon 34 of the IPC It was further observed
that, accused No. 3 along with other co-accused had meris rea to form
a criminal conspiracy of withdrawing the money of the NDCC Bank
by obtainmg sanction by withdrawal of such amount by usmg 111ega1
means obtained the same from the headquarter of the bank at
Nagpur It was lastly held that this is a fit case for frarnlng charge
agalnst accused No.3 and to proceed W1th trial. It is noteworthy that,
accused No.3 has not challenged the said order. Instead, ‘he has made

ﬂ/ the present application. Be that as it may. Suffice is to say that, there
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is sufficient material on record in order to frame charge against

accused No.3.

26. In view of the above, it can not be said that, the charge
against accused No.3 is groundless. Hence, point No.1 is answered in

the negative.

As to Point No.2.
27 In view of the negative finding on point No.l, the

application is liable to be rejected. Hence, order.

ORDER

Application Exh.3666 is rejected.

e
Nagpur. @\u\(w

Date : 11.11.2025 ( M.V, Phade )
T 24 Addl Chief Judicial Magistrate
s (Spl. Court for S.138 N.I. Act),

Nagpur.
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IN THE COURT OF 2™ ADDITIONAL CHIEF JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE

NAGPUR AT NAGPUR.
R.C.C.N0.3030147/2002 Exh.3737
CHARGE

I, M. V Phade, 2™ Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate, Nagpur
do hereby charge you-

Accused No.3 :- Sanjay Hariramji Agrawal,
Aged about 61 years,
Occupation : Business
Resident of : 7, Hari Seva Street, Kidderpore,
Kolkata.

as follows :

1] That, you accused No.3 alongwith convicted accused Nos.1,
2, 4, 7 to 9 and accused No.10 Kanan Vasant Mewawala, on or about
14.09.2000, 05.02.2000 to 12.06.2001 and during the intervening
period at Nagpur agreed to do (or cause to be done) an illegal act i.e.
misappropriation of funds(money) of X241.73 Crore of the Nagpur
District Central Co-operative Bank by illegal means i.e. under the guise
of purchasing Government Securities on the basis of illegal resolutions
and forged documents and you being party to the said criminal
conspiracy have thereby committed an offence punishable under

Section 120B of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and within my cognizance.

2] Secondly, during the aforesaid period and place, you accused
No.3, convicted accused Nos.4, 7 to 9 and accused No.10 Kanan Vasant
Mewawala being the brokers and acting in the capacity of brokers

alongwith convicted accused Nos.1 and 2 being Chairman and General
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Manager, respectively, of the Nagpur District Central Co-operative Bank
being entrusted with the property, namely, the money (3241.73 Crore)
of the Nagpur District Central Co-operative Bank for investing it in the
Government Securities, entered into criminal conspiracy and committed
criminal breach of trust pertaining to the said money and thus, you have
thereby committed an offence punishable under Section 406 read
with Section 120B of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and within my
cognizance.
IN ALTERNATIVE

Secondly, during the aforesaid period and place, you accused

No.3, convicted accused Nos.4, 7 to 9 and accused No.10 Kanan Vasant
Mewawala being the brokers and acting in the capacity of brokers
alongwith convicted accused Nos.1 and 2 being Chairman and General
Manager, respectively, of the Nagpur District Central Co-operative Bank
being entrusted with the property, namely, the money (X241.73 Crore)
of the Nagpur District Central Co-operative Bank for investing it in the
Government Securities, in furtherence of your common intention
committed criminal breach of trust pertaining to the said money and
thus, you have thereby committed an offence punishable under Section
406 read with Section 34 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and within my

cognizance.

31 Thirdly, during the aforesaid period and place, you accused
No.3, convicted accused Nos.4, 7 to 9 and accused No.10 Kanan Vasant
Mewawala being the brokers and acting in the capacity of brokers
alongwith convicted accused Nos.1 and 2 being Chairman and General
Manager, respectively, of the Nagpur District Central Co-operative Bank,

entered into criminal conspiracy and committed criminal breach of trust
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pertaining to the money (3241.73 Crore) of the Nagpur District Central
Co-operative Bank, and thus, you have thereby committed an offence
punishable under Section 409 read with Section 120B of the Indian
Penal Code, 1860 and within my cognizance.
IN ALTERNATIVE
Thirdly, during the aforesaid period and place, you accused
No.3, convicted accused Nos.4, 7 to 9 and accused No.10 Kanan Vasant
Mewawala being the brokers and acting in the capacity of brokers
alongwith convicted accused Nos.1 and 2 being Chairman and General
Manager, respectively, of the Nagpur District Central Co-operative Bank,
in furtherence of your common intention committed criminal breach of
trust pertaining to the money (X241.73 Crore) of the Nagpur District
Central Co-operative Bank, and thus, you have thereby committed an
offence punishable under Section 409 read with Section 34 of the

Indian Penal Code, 1860 and within my cognizance.

4] Fourthly, during the aforesaid period and place, you
accused No.3 alongwith convicted accused Nos.1, 2, 4, 7 to 9 and
accused No.10 Kanan Vasant Mewawala, entered into criminal
conspiracy and prepared forged Government Securities and had placed
the same before the inspection team of the National Bank for
Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) during the inspection
period, i.e. 06.02.2002 to 24.02.2002 and thus, you have thereby
committed an offence punishable under Section 468 read with Section
120B of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and within my cognizance.
IN ALTERNATIVE
Fourthly, during the aforesaid period and place, you

accused No.3 alongwith convicted accused Nos.1, 2, 4, 7 to 9 and
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accused No.10 Kanan Vasant Mewawala, in furtherence of your
common intention prepared forged Government Securities and had
placed the same before the inspection team of the National Bank for
Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) during the inspection
period, i.e. 06.02.2002 to 24.02.2002 and thus, you have thereby
committed an offence punishable under Section 468 read with Section

34 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and within my cognizance.

5] Fifthly, during the aforesaid period and place, you accused
No.3 alongwith convicted accused Nos.1, 2, 4, 7 to 9 and accused No.10
Kanan Vasant Mewawala, entered into criminal conspiracy and had
fradulently and dishonestly used as genuine photocopies of Government
Securities which you had knowledge or had reason to believe to be
forged by placing the same before the inspection team of the National
Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) during the
inspection period, i.e. 06.02.2002 to 24.02.2002 and thus, you have
thereby committed an offence punishable under Section 471 read with
Section 120B of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and within my cognizance.
IN ALTERNATIVE

Fifthly, during the aforesaid period and place, you accused
No.3 alongwith convicted accused Nos.1, 2, 4, 7 to 9 and accused No.10
Kanan Vasant Mewawala, in furtherence of your common intention had
fradulently and dishonestly used as genuine photocopies of Government
Securities which you had knowledge or had reason to believe to be
forged by placing the same before the inspection team of the National
Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) during the
inspection period, i.e. 06.02.2002 to 24.02.2002 and thus, you have
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thereby committed an offence punishable under Section 471 read with
Section 34 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and within my cognizance.
And, I hereby direct that you be tried before me on the

aforesaid charges.

Sd/-
Nagpur (M.V. Phade)
Date: 26.11.2025 2™ Addl. Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Nagpur.
CERTTFICATE

The charge was read over and explained to the accused in
English through video conferencing to which he pleaded not guilty and
claimed to be tried. Advocate Shri.Pankaj Tamboli representing the
accused and the Ld. Spl.APP were present before the Court physically.

The accused has been directed to remain present on next date for

signing the plea. e Di }E;Izggy Hs,igned by
VIJAYKUMAR praps AR
PHADE Date: 2025.11.26
17:08:45 +0530
Nagpur (M.V. Phade)
Date: 26.11.2025 2™ Addl. Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Nagpur.
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NAGPUR DISTRICT CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD. % ©  CONTRACT NO. LBL/NSE/2001 - 2,000/000 6,472 e £, A A O
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S ?gr"‘ e ..Wfﬂkmw\/ G .
SECURITY DETAILS B R N ;
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] Order Number ST Security @Y sug T Repo Value Price  |Repo OA
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%
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TN - Trade No. CBN - Counter Party Broker Name LIP - Last Interest Payment Date BR - Brokerage TC - Tolal Consideration

LS



g 97

Limited,Bombay and other Government/Regulatory bodies as applicable.

Brokerage has been charged as stated and has been at rates not exceeding the official scale of brokerage and indicate
separately.

This contract is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in Bombay.

In the event of any claim(whether admitted or not) difference or dispute arising between you and me/us out of these transactions

the matter shall be referred to arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited , Bombay

This contract constitutes and shall be deemed to constitute as provided overleaf an agreement between you and me/us that
all claims(whether admitted or not),differences and dispute inrespect of any dealings , transactions and contracts of a date
prior or subsequent (o the date of this contract (including any question whether such dealings , transactions or contracts of a date

~been entered-into or not) shall be submitted-to and decided by ‘Arbitration-in Bombay as prov:ded in' the Rules,Bye-Laws and
. .Regulatlons of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited , Bombay:

-

“Yours Faithfully- .~ 0

< % et o ,“_.‘\

Member of National Stock Exchange of India’Ltd/Bombay
: ",:'f. 4 i A
&8¢y HOME TRADE mmenk! L if
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ON - Order Na, TD - Trade Date SD - Settlement Date SV - Sale Value Al - Accrued Interest iy
TN - Trade No. CBN - Counter Pasty BrokerName ~ LIP - Last Interest Payment Date BR .- Brokerage TC - Total Consideration \‘%



k)

This contract is made subject to the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations, and usages of the National Stock Exch§
Limited,Bombay and other Government/Regulatory bodies as applicable.

Brokerage has been charged as stated and has been at rates not exceeding the official scale of brokerage and in
separately.
This contract is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in Bombay.

In the event of any claim(whether admitted or not) difference or dispute arising between you and me/us out of these transactions

the matter shall be referred to arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited , Bombay

This contract constitutes and shall be deemed to constitute as provided overleaf an agreement between you and me/us that
all claims(whether admitted or not),differences and dispute inrespect of any dealings , transactions and contracts of a date

prior or subsequent 1o the date of this contract (including any question whether such dealings , transactions or contracts of a date

been entered into or not) shall be submitted to and decided by Arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and
~Regulations of the National: Stock-Exchange of India Limited ; Bombay. e o

Yours Faithfully "

: e
Member of National Stock Exchange of Indi 'L,rﬁ-’éombay
(5
far HOME TRADE LIMITED .'I..‘.‘:j {
ey
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Private use only

i A CONTRACT NOTE i | ; ,
P : TG b 2 T ( Regulation 3.5 ) § Homagy Treds
., 4 Subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in India o
C o home trade Itd.
N Contract note issued by mcmbcrs action for constituents as Brokers & Agents or principals Tower 4, Sth Floor, Intemational
QTN "U Infatech “ark, Navi Mumbai - 300 703
S \n_ﬁ 93w Tel 91:2278) 244, 781 2550, Fax: 91 2271 254
To k 3 % z
NAGPUR DISTRICT CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANKLTD o & CONTRACT NO.LBL/NSE/2002 - 2,001/000 7,091
RUIKAR ROAD &7 % Constituent Order Ref. No.
GANDHI SAGAR ,l_ i.z. __’Slan'p as required under Article 43(f) OR Article 5(b) of schedule 1 to the Bombqy S
e R
) -.-I__‘
eFy
I/We have this day done by your order and to your account the low'mg transactions :
S = =. !'2 =.
Order Number ST Security 'g FDlssue ¥ Repo Value Price  |Repo 0A gl -
Name N '-'Q Period | (inRs. Lacs) (nRs) |Rate (%) (inLacs) (¥
: \ 1
A N
10012002108 GS GOI 2019 10,03~ NA 900.00 112.00 NA x{:’“
L0 e
ST - Security Type TT - Trade type OA - Order Attributes (RE/NR - REPO/NON REPO) o
e TR &
TRANSACTION DETAILS [Trade Date 10/01/2002 Settlement Date 11/01/2002 —| g Aé-
| ¢
B/S ON ™ L CBN .~ CPN LIP PV/SV (Rs.) BR (Rs.) Al TDS TC -
S | 10012002108 |56,08)12:01:10 HOMETRADE | 09/08/2001 100,800,000.00 3,811,400,00 0.00 104,611,400.00 j
"\
\
Remarks i g
O
B/S - Buy/Scl! TT - Trade Time CPN - Counter Party Participant Name PV - Purchase Value TDS - Tax Deducted ( )
ON - Qrder No. TD - Trade Dale ; SD - Settlement Date SV - Sale Value Al - Accrued Interest !
TN - '(-ade No. CBN - Counter Party Broker Name LIP - Last Interest Payment Date BR - Brokerage TC - Total Consideration '

1
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{
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—— Regulations of the National.Stock-Exchange of India Limited ; Bombay:

10]

This contract is made subject to the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations, and usages of the Natjonal Stock Exch

o r 2 pl
§o0f Indja %
Limited,Bombay and sther Government/Regulatory bodies as applicable. e

'
f

separately.
This contract is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in Bombay. e

In the event of any claim(whether admitted or not) difference or dispute arising between you and me/us out of these transactions

the matter shall be referred to arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited , Bombay

This contract constitutes and shall be deemed to constitute as provided overleaf an agreement between you and me/us that

all claims(whether admitted or not),differences and dispute inrespect of any dealings , transactions and contracts of a date

prior or subsequent o the date of this contract (including any question whether such dealings , transactions or contracts of a date
been entered into or not) shall be submitted to and decided by Arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and

BOMBAY

Yours Faithfully
Member of Naﬁohal Stock Exchange of India Ltd. Bombay

-

For HOMF TRADE LIMITED

{ 5&%5% z%a; A oll._soo SIgnaloryIDlté&hi'-‘
|szE58zz 08 \ g5
e 258288152 @
ama 53238 %: s :
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f7 \C8de? Foeis :
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Private use only

- e i
Ekar 10 CONTRACT NOTE
= ( Regulation 3.5 )
: Subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in India
: \@% Contract note issued by mgnbsrgaetion for constituents as Brokers & Agents or principals s gj‘;z“ "'"::a'"p A
> ® 0 = Tel 9122XBI21), 78 254056 -nmsi-u
S % B0 e b ]
-TO, '.. 9-‘0- ; L3 '_7‘ it g ;.'_/"
NAGPUR DISTRICT CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD ".'—3: : CONTRACT NO. LBL/NSE/2001 - 2,002/000 6,819 / & it "H'” '-“"_"T’; o
RUIKAR ROAD o >} Constituent Order Ref. No. ‘ Wil
GANDHI SAGAR - Stnmp as required under Article 43(f) OR Article 5(b) of ule 1 to the Bombay Stnm)i Act, 1958,
NAGPUR .\i %— E A
Pin Code : ‘P‘{S"--x\ P/“ MMEUWTEDQU PR
I/We have this day done by your order and to your account the Tol?wmg transactions e | B el wmpilod 8 £ : * iehV|
= . thorisea Signatory/Director f 2/ o Pg
SECURITY DETAILS 204 15_: PR T8frecs,
T S~
Order Number ST Security -y ‘gssue by i Repo Value Price Repo . OA s
Name BY o Period |  (InRs. Lacs) (nRs) {Rate (%) (in Lacs)
N
29102001152 GS ca%o13 {240 NA 100,00 17,50 NA.
ST - Security Type TT - Trade type OA - Order Attributes (RE/NR - REPO/NON REPO)
TRANSACTION DETAILS [Trade Date 297102001 Settlement Date 29102001 | _
B/S ON ™ T CBN CPN LIP PV/SV (Rs.) BR (Rs.) Al TDS TC
: ot
B 129102001152 |55,05(1:18:06 HOME TRADE | 20/08/2001 ¢ 11,750,000.00 6’:666.67 0.00 11,987,666.67
3
CODES )
B/S - Buy/Sell TT - Trade Time CPN - Counter Party Participant Name PV - Purchase Value TDS - Tax Deducted 4
ON - Order No. TD - Trade Date SD - Settlement Date SV - Sale Value Al - Accrued Interest
TN - rade No. CBN - Counter Party Broker Name LIP - Last Inlerest Payment Date BR - Brokerage TC - Total Consideration \ <
/ Nk
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This contract is made subject to the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations, and usages of the National Stock Exchange of Indja. Eai
Limited, Bombay and other Government/Regulatory bodies as applicable.

\Qj‘rr:ﬂ- oy &

Brokerage has been charged as stated and has been at rates not exceeding the official scale of brokerage and indicated B
separately.

This contract is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in Bombay.

In the event of any claim(whether admitted or not) difference or dispute arising between you and me/us out of these transactions
the matter shali be referred 1o arbitration in Bomba:

y as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited , Bombay

This contract constitutes and shall be deemed to constitute as provided overleaf an agreement between you and me/us that

all claims(whether admitted or not),differences and dispute inrespect of any dealings , transactions and contracts of a date
prior or subsequent to the date of this contract (including an

y question whether such dealings , transactions or contracts of a date
been entered into or not) shall be submitted to and decided by Arbitration

n in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and
Regulations of the National Stock Exchange of Tndia Limited , Bombay. :

BOMBAY Yours Faithfully

Member of National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. Bombay

For HOMF TRADE LIMITED
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Private use only

i Lo CONTRACT NOTE
- __t\"/ s e 4 { Regulation 3.5 )
i Subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in India \ : :
R e § * \\;i:, o homa trade itd.
\(o Contract note issued hy members action for constitucnts as Brokers & Agents or principals —~ - Tower 4. Sth Floor. Intemmational
- Infotech Pack, Navi Mumbai - 100 703
O 'u. Tel OLELIBI 2444, 781 2550, Fax: 9124 781 254
'3‘- 2
To, ® 3 29,1
NAGPUR DISTRICT CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD} ‘; o CONTRACT NO. LBL/NSE/2001 - 2,002/000 6,82? : AL -
RUIKAR ROAD e _ Constituent Order Ref. No. | o
GANDHI SAGAR ?\“ :f_ e Stamp as required under Article 43(f) OR Article 5(6') of schedule 1 to the Bnmﬁays}n.mp Act, 1958.
NAGPUR AR ‘ .
Pin Code : APl . l :
e S .". , w‘ |
I/We have this day done by your order and to your account the following transactions : ; £ L #\
: i \ Y\Q‘mmﬂsm Sl'nalcry Directcr | '7E /.. ibe
SE DETAILS : ¥+t
Order Number ST Security 9 *Issue TT | Repo Value Price  |Repo OA
Name D Period (In Rs. Lacs) (InRs) |Rate (%) (in Lacs)
’ (/q X
29102001160 EQ GOI126 10.78” NA 1,500.00 { 10295 NA
ST - Security Type TT - Trade type OA - Order Attributes (RE/NR - REFO/NON REFPO) ( i
" Sl 3
: a
{0
TRANSACTION DETAILS |Trade Date 29/10/2001 Settlement Dale_29/10200] | (o
B/S ON ™ 1 3 CBN CPN LIP l'1‘-‘1!!3\/ (Rs) | BR(Rs) Al TDS TC '
B [29102001160 |55,09 2:27:07 HOME TRADE | 11/09/2001 154,425,000.00 720360000 000 ”'156,461,000,00 \
A : ; ¢
CODES : i @ [
B/S - Buy/Sell TT - Trade Time CPN - Counter Party Participant Name PV - Purchase Value TDS - Tax Deducled
ON - Order No. TD - Trade Date SD - Seitlement Date SV - Sale Value Al - Accrued Interest N 3
TN - Trade No. CBN - Counter Party Broker Name LIP - Last Interest Payment Dale BR - Brokerage TC - Tolal Consideration &

1%



(05

Q ' This contract is made subject to the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations, and usages of the National Stock Exchange lof Iﬁdia s ".
2z Limited,Bombay and other Government/Regulatory bodies as applicable. i S c’
L s o SR § “-“"'
§ g = Brokerage has been charged as stated and has been at rates not exceeding the official scale of brokerage and indicated . ~ "~ .
- separately. “

This contract is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in Bombay.

In the event of any claim(whether admitted or not) difference or dispute arising between you and me/us out of these transactions

e FREFLE the matter shail be referred to arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations of the National Stock
j8Rass8,2 2.%  Exchange of India Limited , Bombay :
i S<gegZio8
i - i % % & % g Z'ﬁ This contract constitutes and shall be deemed to constitute as provided overleaf an agreement between you and me/us that
IR * 2° s “;:* 238 %  all claims(whether admitted or not),differences and dispute inrespect of any dealings , transactions and contracts of a date
pE g s % s°* $ ot prior or subsequent to the date of this contract (including any question whether such dealings , transactions or contracts of a date
ES i = o7 8 P8 <F  been entered into or not) shall be submitted to and decided by Arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and
g' ? ﬁ@ 3 S = ﬁs 8 Regulationsof the-National Stock Exchange of India-Limited:, Bombay:. : : s : ~
et (. i D~
H g £ i(%% s & BOMBAY Yours Faithfully

MR
pais
A b
SEM
2
Ul

* Member of National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. Bombay

For HOMF TRADE LIMITED
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CONTRACT NOT
{ Regulation 3.5 )

Subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in India

— L \‘ . ? g home trade Itd.
Contract note issued by members action for constituents as Brokers & Agents or principals BTSN e 3, 10 Pt Il
oV "w R Tel: su-;u“-;at ::u.;‘a: ?55;':'"' 91 22701 254
To, S E; Z -
0 - V‘._
P NAGPUR DISTRICT CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD * : 2\» %‘ CONTRACT NO. LBL/NSEN2001 - 2,0024‘000 6,829 \.
:| RUIKAR ROAD ‘-“E ;' Constituent Order Ref. No. \
3 GANDHI SAGAR 2 t% Stamp as required under Article 43(f) 01% Arl{clc 5{(b) of schedule 1 }o 111? Bombay Stamp Act, 1958.
ma| NAGPUR '-'w...l =i
«a3{ Pin Code: .;};-, -.Jw Fg:.aoMFfrnAoE LIMITED &-17¢ - &
A e g - R \ i
I/We have this day done by your order and to your account the follovnng transactions : : Qf‘;; £ 3 200
. aD H 4 u:hﬁ:ao Signatory/Oirector ' 7 ey
SECURITY DETAILS i % =i
'Order Number ST Security Q a &t '1'§£:|a k3 3 Repo Value Price  [Repo OA
Name \~ S Period (In Rs. Lacs) (InRs) |Rate (%) (in Lacs)
I, =
S 29102001162 GS GOl 2019 10.0 NA 550.00 102.60 NA
= e
) N
4 ST - Security Type - TT - Trade type A - Order Attributes (RE/NR - REPO/NON REPQ) . (
) P
: ON DET. {Trade Date 29/102001 Settlement Date 29/1072001 | i3 :
et *”
g B/S ON TN 4 CBN CPN LIP PWSV (Rs.) BR (Rs.) Al TDS TC 5 4
o oy .",..p-" . - 1/
a B |29102001162 {57,00|2:45:04 HOME TRADE | 09/08/2001 s ,430,000.00 1,225,888.89|  0.00 /(57.655,3_33 89 ?
CODES /
B/S - Buy/Sell TT - Trade Time . CPN - Counter Party Participant Name PV - Purchase Value TDS - Tax Deductéd
ON - Order » .. TD - Trade Date SD - Setilement Date SV - Sale Value Al - Acerued Interest
TN - Trade No. CBN - Counter Party Broker Name LIP - Last Interest Payment Date BR - Brokerage TC - Total Consideration '




[07F

1)
;% 2; %’ s E This contract is made subject to the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations, and usages of the National Stock Exchan
. DE ¢ Limited,Bombay and other Government/Regulatory bodies as applicable.
son Brokerage has been charged as stated and has been at rates not exceeding the official scale of brokerage and indicat
separately.
This contract is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in Bombay. ..,
‘ g 8 H § 7 -i % § & Inthe event of any claim(whether admitted or not) difference or dispute arising between you and me/us out of these transactions
i ESEERG C i3e  the maiter shall be referred to arbitration in Bombay as provided in thé Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations of the National Stock
&85 @ w =T lis . 40
I Sag ;'E, i L—g Exchange of India Limited , Bombay
{ £2  FE 8]
i; E i § & %é % E% ‘~% This contract constitutes and shall be deemed to constitute as provided overleaf an agreement between you and me/us that
& & . &; g ° = 'g S all claims(whether admitted or not),differences and dispute inrespect of any dealings , transactions and contracts of a date
§ 2\ —B ___,E' B3 Yo 58 prioror subsequent to the date of this contract (including any question whether such dealings , transactions or contracts of a date
g2 \ g—8 =2 _‘;8 e ‘E’ been entered into or not) shall be submitted to and decided by Arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and
ﬁ«g = i E: :3:.3,'— %‘-%’-‘,?_ ~=Regulations of the National Stock-Exchange-of India Limited:; Bombay: i :
‘ ! RN T § . :

Eoen Yours Faithfully
ey : : i Member of National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. Bombay

For HOME TRADE LIMITED o
™ ) : Pl o
g -/‘-‘\f IF ‘ i

'\Vuﬂﬁneau Signiatul pLHUCICH )
Y\ i
ri - "‘I




R ) | Wy ¥ (0%
T g g : CONTRACT NOTE iy
! \.._- -~ l : (Regulati Y, Trade
- i e f cgulation 3.5 ) ]
i | R 2 e B =] ) (o)
093 ; 'Q\;\l\\ '} ) Subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in India Fores wri o R
= - ; N o s R R o s S0yt T e N S A SRR A & " homie trade Ntd,
- R S s Contract note issucd by mcml%:r_s action for constituents as Brokers & Agents or principals ~4G_P\_-‘f' i sy B
) v - oiech Pa vi Mumbai - &
‘ . 74 ~i \ Tel 912278) 208 78 259, Fo 1 701 28
TO 4 6 g =
3 gy -
j NAGPUR DISTRICT CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANKLTD % oy i CONTRACT NO. LBL/NSE/2002 - 2,001/000 7,093 b
53| RUKAR ROAD <>:_1i Constituent Order Ref. No.
S:gl?UHl]{ SAGAR p,?; Stamp as required under Article 43(f) OR Article SQ:) ol‘ ;chedule l to the Bo{p}:u Stamp Act, 1958,
_ .9
Pin Code : ,-,,_1 .:
g
I/We have this day done by your order and to your account th g transactions : ;
E o it ': origea Signatory/Director ' /4 /70, ,
Order Number ST Security © b T Repo Value Price Repo 0A :
Name \ ‘; Period (In Rs. Lacs) (InRs) [Rate (%) (in Lacs)
oy 10012002110 EQ GOI 26 NA 1,500.00 115.01 NA S
vinth . .
s- - |. - “0.
; ST - Security Type TT - Trade type OA - Order Attributes (RE/NR - REPQ/NON REPO) . \
3 TRANSACTION DETAILS | Trade Date 10/01/2002 Settlement Date 11/01/2002 [ LNl
st
E * | |B/S ON ™ T CBN CPN LIP PV/SV (Rs.) BR (Rs.) Al TDS 70 (E
L]
™ - .
o S [10012002110 |56,09]12:10:24 HOMETRADE | 11/09/2001 172,515,000.00 5,090,000.00 0.00 177,605,000.00 %
Remarks .%‘ L\ﬁ
gﬁ - Buy:'S:!l g - "Il.‘ﬁ 'g;ne (S'.‘;N Sﬁ;unter I’S:y Participant Name PV- gaulrclmse Value TDS - Tax Deducted
- Order N~ - le ement Date SV - Sale Value Al - Accrued Interest 3
TN - Trade Mo, CBN - Counter Party Broker Name LIP - Last Interest Payment Date BR - Brokerage TC - Total Consideration \ 3 | %‘
/= \
th

L

| %(
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This qéntract is made subject to the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations, and usages of the National Stock Exc
A ’Lir}ﬁted,Bombay and other Government/Regulatory bodies as applicable.

ﬁmkerage has been charged as stated and has been at rates not exceeding the official scale of brokerage and indi

separately.

This contract is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in Bombay.

In the event of any claim(whether admitted or not) difference or disputé arising between you and me/us out of these transactions

the matier shall be referred to arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations of the National Stock

Exchange of India Limited , Bombay

This contract constitutes and shall be deemed to constitute as provided overleaf an agreement between you and me/us that
all claims(whether admitted or not),differences and dispute inrespect of any dealings , transactions and contracts of a date
prior or subsequent to the date of this contract (including any question whether such dealings , transactions or contracts of a date

- S——

been entered into or not) shall be submitted to and decided by Arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and

~Regulations of the National Stock-Exchange of ndia Limited , Bombay.

BOMBAY

Yours Faithfully

Member of National Stock Eicﬁaﬁge of India Ltd. ﬁombay .

S EF g g o
| §§Fg.283
g2sEa>% s
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For HOMF TRADE LIMITED
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o e \ CONTRACT NOTE R0
(\?). ik f } 'I" \ \ %) S% (3 j ( Regulation 3.5 )
' o o 5 Subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in India
3 Contract note issued by members action for constituents as Brokers & Agents or principals 5
é o '0 “\ E ‘h] - hfmexb!’n
- o , GPQWI 78] ‘ﬂu
® 35 / N e
‘q To, 9 é z %
NAGPUR DISTRICT CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD “- g. 9 CONTRACT NO. LBL/NSE/2001 - 2,002/000 6,827 ' \
“*1 RUIKAR ROAD G i Constituent Order Ref. No. d
GANDHI SAGAR 32 Stamp as required under Article 43(f) OR Article 5(b) pf schedule I tothe Bombay Sta]np Act, 1958.
NAGPUR YT ~ iz R I
Pin Code : ‘.-;-, :f'} e g&\aom: TF!ADE U’MlTED Rl i
e o : \ N
I/We have this day done by your order and to your account the fol!omng transactions : ‘""" it iy BAN
H y v Unhorigea Slgnatcrﬂmmmcr iz 7 3/ L
s DET e
Order Number ST Security ® Idsue L Repo Value Price Repo OA il
Name iy Period (In Rs. Lacs) (InRs) |Rate (%) (inLacs)
& z _
5 29102001158 GS CG2013 l12.40 3a% NA " 1,400.00 £116.85 NA ( F
3 Y
™| ST - Security Type TT - Trade type OA - Order Attributes (RE/NR. - REPO/NON REPQ) b
u - .
é TRANSACTION DETAILS | Trade Date 29/10/2001 Settlement Date 29/102001 | &;
- oy \
al|Bs| oN [m]| TT CBN CPN LIP | PV/SV(Rs) | BR(Rs) Al TDS TC ;
B |29102001158 [55,08|2:18:01 HOME TRADE | 20082001 |  (163,590,000.00 (332733333 000 16691733333 5
CODES \\))
B/S - Buy/Sell TT - Trads Time CPN - Counter Party Participant Name PV - Purchase Value TDS - Tax Deducted
ON - Order ™in, TD - Trade Date SD - Setllement Date SV - Sale Value Al - Accrued Interest 0
TN - Trade 1+0. CBN - Counter Party Broker Name LIP - Last Interest Payment Date BR - Brokerage TC - Total Considerati \ 0 N
o
G \ '\

R 2 N e i
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This contract is made subject to the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations, and usages of the National Stock Exchang bf“‘}ﬁdia‘_\ ‘?Jf;.

Limited,Bombay and other Government/Regulatory bodies as applicable. o B WY

Brokerage has been charged as stated and has been at rates not exceeding the official scale of brokerage and indica“&{é S
separately. N

This contract is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts in Bombay.

In the event of any claim(whcther admitted or not) difference or dispute arising between you and me/us out of these transactions
the matter shall be referred to arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and Regulations of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited , Bombay

This contract constitutes and shall be deemed to constitute as provided overleaf an agreement between you and me/us that

all claims(whether admitted or not),differences and dispute inrespect of any dealings , transactions and contracts of a date

prior or subsequent to the date of this contract (including any question whether such dealings , transactions or contracts of a date
been entered into or not) shall be submitted to and decided by Arbitration in Bombay as provided in the Rules,Bye-Laws and
Regulations of the NationalStock Exchange of India Limited ; Bombay.

BOMBAY Yours Faithfully
' ' Member of National Stock Exchange of Iidia Ltd. Bombay

F-:g_r HOMF TRADE LIMITE

)

—— r——

‘ ; 5 g; ® gé.ﬁsi Signatory/Olrector
il ol o S
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o0 o :
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@ | NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the EIGHT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of HOME TRADE
LIMITED will be held on Saturday 23" September, 2001 at 10

Office of the Company al 124A| Sofirab Hall, 21, Sasoon Road, Pune
the following business: - {

ORDINARY BUSINESS f

To recaive, consider and adopt the Balance Sheat as at 31 March, 2001, the Prait -
and Loss Account for the year ended 31¥ March 2001, the Report of the Diractols.
and the Report of the Auditors. 24

2. To declare Dividend on Equity Shares. :

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj (Mike) A. Shah, who retires by rotation 0
being eliglble offers himself for re-appointment. ;

4. To appoint a Direétor in place of Mr. Alan James McMiltan, who retires by
beingjeligible offers himsell for re-appointment. :

S. To appoint M/s. J.8. Vanzara & Assoclates, Chartsred Accountants asj?
Campany to hold office form the conclusion of this mesting untll the ¢
next Annual General Meating and to fix thelr remuneration. =

SPECIAL B

8. To consider and if thought fit, 1o pass, with or without modification(s}, the fo
Resolution, as an Ordinary Resolution :-

“RESOLVED that Shri Salil D. Gandhi, whose temn of office as an Additional Directdtr
of the Company expires at this Annual General Maeeting and in raspect of whom 5

Campany has received a notice under section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 3
a2 member, proposing the candidature of Shri Salil D. Gandhi, for the office

Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company who shall be liabft
to retire by rotation.”

7. To consider and i thought fit, 1o pass with or without modification(s) the follo
Resolution, as an Ordinary Resolution :-

“RESOLVED that Shri Shashank Ranade, whose term of office as an Additiog;
Director of the Company expires at this Annual General Meeting and in re

whom the Company has recsived a nofice under section 257 of the Compe
1956 from a member, proposing the candidature of Shri Shashank
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Comb: ny
be liable 1o retire by rotation.” e

8. To consider and if thought fit, 1o pass with or without modificationtdi
Resollition, as an Ordinary Resolution :-

“RESOLVED that Shri Vijaykumar H. Modi, whose term of office
Director of the Company expires at this Annual General Meeating =
whom the Company has received a nolice under section 257 of
1856 from a member, proposing the candidature of Shri Vijaykumar B&
office of Director, be and Is hereby appointed as a Director of the Co
be liable to retire by rotation.”

Notes :

1. The relevant Explanatory SIThament pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Acl, 1958
in respect of the business under ilem no. 6,7 and 8 set oul above Is annexed herelo.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO?ATI'END AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF & TH
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. :

PRPRIPPY S I Pt~ S P

N L
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? THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE |

REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. 3

§-iv

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer books will remain ctoséd.tmm‘Thursday.
27" Sertember, 2001 1o Saturday, 28" September, 2001 (inclusive of both days).

Mambers on 29" Sepiember, 2001. In respect of shares held in electronic forms, the
dividend will be payable on the basis of beneficial ownership as per the details fumished

by National Securities Depository Limited {NSDL) and Central Depository Services {india)
Limited (CDSL) for the same. :

8. Members are requested to natify immediately about theirchange of address - ‘
{ to their Depasitory Parlicipant {DPs), if the shares are held in electronic forms;
{ii) lo the company’s Registrar & Transfer agent, i.e M/s R & D Consultants

610, Dalamal Tower, 211, Nariman Point, Mumbaj — 400 021 or to the
registered office, il the shares are held in physical form.

7. Mambers who have not furmnished their bani details, may inlorm tha Company's Fleglstmr
& Transfer agent, ie M/'s R & D Consultants Limited, 610, Dalamal Tower, 211, Nariman

Point, Mumbal ~ 400 021 about the said detalls, for issue of dividend warrants to their
respective accounts.

9. Members/Proxy holders should bring the altendangce siips sent hrewilh._duly filled in'for

attending the meeting along with their coples of the Annual Report of tha company.

10. At the ensuing Annual Generat Mealing, Mr. Manoj (Mike) Shah and Mc. Allan James
McMillan, retire by rotation and being efigible , offer themselves for reappoiniment.ifsAs

required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, delails of the said directorg; are
menlioned hereunder :- r%:

O far: ke Shah :- Mr. Mike Shah has been associated with Home Trade for the st 2
years, in the position of an Advisor and non-executive Director for the last 14 mon #:He

brings with him_the benefit ol.his experience for over 30 years in the information te :
industry in India, Currently, Mr. Mike Shah is the President and CEO of Regent es

india Lid., the Indian operations of Regent Associates, one of Europe's largest Me &7

Amalgamation (M&A) specialists in the Intemet and Information Technology businekses,
Through Regent Associates’ worldwide network, Mr. Mike Shah has been active ifi'the
venture capital arena and M& A businesses as an angel investor. 5

Prior 1o this, Mr, Mike Shah worked with the Digital Equipment Corporation, USA (presently

taken over by Compaq) for about 24 years, of which the last g years {1988 to 1994) he held

position of being the first Managing Director of the Company’s Indian operations. During
nure, the company evalved jo become a US$40 million operation with 900 employees.

3

torship in other companies includes :- (j) Regent Associates India Private Limited (ji)
ric Technology Corporation R&D India Private Limited, {il)’ RELQ Sofiware Limited
ays India Limited (v} Guru Infolech India Private Limited (v} Indian Institute of
re Technology Limited {vii) Jthru Techgnologies Private Limited. | m‘

o

i.




G

AsstL. Supay
<.JM. Cou

~agpur |

I 8 Home Trade l..lm{!?bd:_

g:i) ca::“ Allan #OTI? McMitian :- Mr. Allan MoMillan is the co-founder and CEU of Planet- -
ra.Com, the sﬂmlpstamlntranetPoﬂaLHaMﬁyem‘ “erience in.tha -
information umaow business around the worid. Planet Intra is his tour!hex'stan-up: with his
previous three venlures being out-standing successes. He brings to Home Trade (b
international perspective, his proven track record of businass building, wi'h several yegiii
experience in setting up and ing technology businesses, and his knowl of the 3
Pacific Techrology market. Hi§ last start-up was sald to China.com, a ng:ml compiiie
that recently went for an IPO. Mr. Allan McMillan has been helping Home Trade I. ‘

:f*“)‘» i h

sirategic alllances with channel pariners and technology suppliers.

e i e, 0 P v e L
He has not been appointed in any Board Committee of other companies. ‘ _

| | ; By Ogger of the B!
FnrHom;Trade Lim 3

N S Trivedi]
_ Execulive Diractor & Secretdry.
Mumbai, 14™ August, 2001. |
REGISTERED OFFICE: i
124A, Schrab Hall, 21, Sasoon Road,
Pune - 411 001. i

item Nos, 8, 'f, and 8.

Mr. Safil D. Gandhi, Mr. Shashank Ranade and Mr. Vijaykumar H. Modi wert
Additional Directors of the Copany pursuant to section 260 of the Co Act

lerms of the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 1956 and Article 116i9f the Arti
Associalion of the Company, their term of office as Additional Directors expire at the ens
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received notices :the
deposits from members of the Company proposing the candidatures of Mr.

Mr. Shashank Ranade and Mr. Vijaykumar H. Modi for the office of Director. "

Accordingly, the Directors mend these resolutions for the approval of tha members. ?

Mr. Salil D. Gandhi, Mr. Shashank Ranade and Wir. Vijaykumar H. Modi are interested in he
resolution pertaining to their appointment and no other director is interested in the resolutio

By Order of the B

For Home Trade
6&' NS Trly
| Executive Direclor & Sacrg
Mumbai, 14" August, 2001. ‘
REGISTERED OFFICE: : £
124A, Sohrab Hall, 21, Sasoon Road, i
Pune - 411 001. Al o, i
/ ine ga whirh cnnv"v_iéonﬂ-n
/,f, i !or..\.&f\ﬂ.é\ S .meiae a
/.. " 4 .which the applica!iIn 15 3%!@
| g o o all respect .4V A 1A S
: ‘the -date given to lhq a p{;
ovine Cmrnu_iiqo.ﬁr&, for taking deiiveryﬁb,”..l.;.‘io
Companng Char : e date on which u?] 00
0. J ges_b‘ iz . geady for delivery;?‘d,, U
2aper Charges Yootk

: the dale gn -;?_‘2‘-_
va'Chafga ‘ As'-' Guerem
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DIRECTGRS' REPORT
=1=0URS REPORT

TO
THE MEMBERS OF HOME TRADE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their EIGHT Annual Report and Audit Accq
for the year ended March 31, 2001.

i 1. FiNANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS, i

[ : Rsin Lacs ﬁas

31-Mar-01 ° 1M
Gross income 8722,57 ] i

| Profit before Tax 3156.23 713.22%
i - Provision for Incoma Tax 250.75 i
i : Profit after tax 2904.98
/ Add: Net profit brought forward 349.76
{ _] Provision for Income Tax for eatlier years written back (43.45)
ol Holf)

{ Provision for Service Tax for earlier years writien back 30.00
{ #{ofi)
| ] Profit available for appropriation 324129

* Proposed dividend
AR * Dividend Tax
: ; } General Reserve

l Balance carried forward
; ] 2. DIVIDEND: :
i Yomﬂh'actnrsarepleased to recommend a payment of dividend after. pro
f Rs 239,61 lacs (p year 10% Rs 239.61 lacs). The
; atﬂsamungmmlemamlmemwmbepaidloaulhashamh
' appear on the Register of Members, as on 28th Seplember,2001.

3. OPERATIONS:

l In the year under review, your Company has undertaken seve

' ] towards eslablishing itself as dominant Tonvergence-ceniric fina

i

. Your Company’s onling presence through www.hometrade.

. larges independent and oblective aggregators of business news and

i ] in the HomTtadahaspul place an extensive global network of

! o leading lnlom;ation vendors as wall as over 50 indeperident analysts and reporters
PR (e

! 8fnding exercise. This included a nationaf Ouldoors campaign and a TV es

z = 3 nsure that the consumer has access to the most comprehensive and refiab;
i/ \j‘ T 2.9Qurcs of business news, Incisive analyses and financial Information.
B3 ich. 2 .
HJ S ;" st‘.’# ﬂn\g the period under raview, your Company hes underiaken an Intensive intsgrate
I~ & B
| S d’*’

| - . ¢ Lipliminary research commissioned by your Company has confirmed that Home!Fra

SRRk i CFioys remarkably high levels of brand recall among the farget audience. Your 33
’-;\ WSl L # Wil continue 1o pursue an active stralegy lowards eslablishing Home Trade as a [@adind
g Y ‘Q:\G?‘dc‘.-"' global brand, L




4,

6.

| l / g Home Trade I.Iml;gd

H . ‘]
it is among 1he fastest and most reliable in the field. Further efiorts are on to make the
Home Trade e-trading services offering, a seamless, end-o-end transc_“tion experierice:

Your Company Home Trade has a sound transaction —based revenue model in pla

The company’s revenues would primarily come from the tr 1sactions on ils wide range of

financial products and services. Home Trade would imp-ove realfizations from

by cross selling and maltkel synergies across different financial product segments.
i

The financial figures l{lﬂhar reinforce your Company'’s record of continued growth. Tgtal
income has shown a growth of 362% and increased lmﬂs.1453lncshlhawavg:n

year to Rs. 6723 lacs in the year under review. Similarly, PBIT has increased by 300% to
Rs. 3642 lacs and PAT has increased by 425% to Rs. 2905 lacs.

INDUSTRY SCENARIO:

-

The financial services seclor has been one of the fastest growing sectors, both in Ingia as
well globally. Furthermore, this sector has proved resilient to the downtum in the gldbal IT
industry which was praceded by the slowdown in the US economy. Also, the finangial
services sector is the largest market for technology solutions. Technology in is
bringing about a transformation in this sector and will incréasingly become simost
important competitive advantage of financial service companies.

The concept of financial convergance, which Is at the centre of Home Trade's Buksmss
model, is changing the basis on which players in this seclor are organized. Cdiqmar
needs and expeclations are also changing rapidly and this Is crealing imfense
opportunities for new players to enter and redefine the financials services market. «

Your Company's expérﬂsahﬂm!hmndalsenﬁmdmmh.aswéﬂasﬂsmph&hm
innovative technology-driven products and services mekes it eminently posill to
capture growing opportunities in the sector. !

BUSINESS FOCUS & FUTURE PLANS

i
i

The Company is pursuing dynamic, versatile business t'rategies which would capilalise
on changing trends in the financial services industry. Having launched its “é<trading
service, one of the most advanced in the country, Home Trade plans to extand its
services to cover the entire spectrum of personal financial services, including hqutual
funds, personal and housing loans, debt trading and credit cards. Your company i8 still in
the establishment phase and is making rapid progress to in satling up the { ns of
business. | 5

Your Company is pioneering the development: of innovative technology-basediinance
pmductsﬂ;aiﬁigivehemnsumergrealeraccmluahoﬂd financial servic e
initiatives are aimed ‘at changing the way financial service is perceived with the
objective of empowering the consumer. i

PERSONNEL:

In the year under raview the Company implemented multiple new initiatives 1q:
augment and professionally manage the human resources capital of the O
undeniably its most important asset. Your Company has created a lean and flaty
organisation structure comprising a core team of knowledge workers. This has bee:

with a view to provide Home Trade the flexibiity and agiity thal is sssefis
successfully operaling In the dynamic convergence domain. @—mi :

- —

In order to be able. to leverage and utilize the best available
has created a unigue outsourcing employment model that |
al!i_aﬁc_eﬂlhﬁ?b@l-ln-dass organizations. !

s




business line to function independently while cross-functional teams éns
aclivities and focus on achleving common goals.

The prolessionalism and dedication of the Company’s employees at 3
it possible to achieve the impressive results during the year under re
wish 10 place on record their deep appreciation for the same.

7. FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has nat accepled any fixed depesits during the year un
B. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :- |

Your company continues to practice good corporate govemanée for With lh *bh ect
following best in class operaling Iniliatives and enhancing shprehalds) 4
confidence. Your Company remains commitied to a syplem bf godd! corp

shareholders company’s intemal contral struciure ensures with 2
legal requirements and mandatory provisions of Cormporate Govemn ag' presc
under the Lisling Agreement with Stock Exchanges. The Corporate G Reg
annexed to the Directors Repart. ?

5. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY STATEMENT = i

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Acl, 1956, the
- Company hereby confirn that =-

(0] in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the appilcable®accoy
standards have been followed and no material departure bave
the sama. fo 4

(ii) appropriale accounting policles have been selected and & ppliedseon
and have made judgements and estimates that are reaspnable pn
soaslogiveauuaandlairv!ewoflhastalaolaﬂalmd m
31* March, 2_omandotlheproli!onhaoompanyfo§l!w ; rigd;

@ii)  Proper & sufficient care has been taken for the maintehance Bfradec
accounting records in accordance with the provisiofis of the pa
1956lor safe guarding the assets of the compasy an{l for preventi
delecting fraud and other irregularilies; i i

{iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a goinglconcdm basis:.

10. DIRECTORS :

During the year under review, Mr. Salii D. Gandhi, Mr. Shashaz
Vijaykumar H. Modi were appointed on 15" May 2001, as Addiii 5
Company pursuant to section 260 of the Companies Act, 1856. In termpe ¢ applic
provision of the Companies Act, 1956 and Article 116 of the Articles o| Association o

During the year under review, Mr. Ketan Sheth resigned from thg Boa |08 L
15" May, 2001. The Board records its appreciation for the cditribulices Sxsg
Sheth during his lenure as Director of the Company. ;

"
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11. AUDITORS: . |

M/s. Parimal R Shah & Co., Chartered Accounlants, have expressed their de
seek re-appointment as Auditors of the Company. The Board of Direclors
that M/s J.S. Vanzara Associates, Chartered Account
appointment, be appointed as Auditors of the Company

The Board of Directors of the company clarified the following points with
Auditors Repnns".f as annexed to this Report, for the year under review :- ;

()] The Board of Directors are of the opinion that though the
procedures ars meticulously designed 1o meget the business
however, considering the growing business activities of the compa
control ;:rchanisms& procedures would be upgraded to meet the
of the fast changing activities of the company. :

{in)- As per Clause 15 to the Auditors Report, the Board of Directors he
a. The admitted tax fabflity under dividend tax and the tax deducisi

ara in the process of heing paid. s
b. In raspect of income tax {lability, the Company has sought legal
. on receipt of the said opinion, the Company will pay the same. !

12. STATUTORY INFORMATION:

(A)  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION} FOR
EX GE EARNINGS AND OUT GO. %L

The information pursuant to section 217(1){s) of the Companies Act
with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board
Rules, 1888, relating to the conservatlon of energy and tec! e
ara not appiicable to the Company and hence not provided. 2
information in respect of foreign exchange eamings and outgo, :
been given in Annexure ‘A’ to the Directors’ Report :

(8) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As required by the provisions of section 217 (2A) of the Compan#
read with the Compenies {Particulars oi Employees) Rules, 197518
the names and othar particulars of the employees are set out in the#
to the Direclors’ Reportl.

13. ACKNOWLEDGMENT: P

The Board of Direclors wishes to thank ils bankers, clients and businass s
their continued | co-operation and support. The Board also wishes 1€
appreciation to all its staff members for their contribution towards the 2
year's performance.

Mumbai, 14™ August, 2001.

REGISTERED OFFICE:
124A, Sohrab Hall, 21, Sasoon Road,
Pune - 411 001.




Home Trade Limited

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
Particulare required under the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988,
A) Forelgn Exchange earnings and out go

i) Foreign Exchange eamings - NIl
ii) Forelgn Exchange oulgo - Rs.1,66,57,585.00

NNEXURE 'B' - Particulars of rsuant to sectl of the ny's 185
Name of Employe  [Designation Qualifications Experlence [Dats of e [Remuneration [Previous Employment
’ (Years) olning Years |{Rs.)
Anu| Sin Asst-Vice President [B.A., MBA (IIM) 11-Dec-200 2 *6238924TC Ltd
Chirag Jain Sr. A V. P, B, Tech., PGDM (lIM) Bl _12-Jun.2000, 3 "228246 Bank "'6,
G G Srinivas *Managar Tech, PGDM (IM 7} _17-Jun:200! 3 *1233899(CHtl Bank Q
Hiren Gada Sr. Vice President .Com, MMS (Fin 7] _24-Feb-1897{ 30 33 Pranav Securities Pvi. Lid
Latha Venkatesh Asst-Vice President [Phd. (political Science) 171 15-May-20 4 *1459100/Dow Jones Newswires
ish Agarwal Asst-Vice Presidant [B. Tach, PGDM (IM) 8-May-2 31 *2687! Bank
Naveen Gupla st-Vice President [MBA 10-Aug-2 *110218 Bank
ISubodh Bhandari Sr. Vice President . Com, FCA 121 1-Feb-1985 241446 Shares & Slock Broker P LTd X' s
Naveen Luthra t-Vice President |B.Sc. MBA (IiM) 7_2eui 31| *1114355Satyam Infoway Lid _ =
Pankaf Kulkami Asst-Vice President [BE, MBA (IIM) 4 10-Aug- 27| __ *2403488/CiHl Bank AC
.E. (Electrical), MBA
Piyush Sharma Vice President 13| 17-Feb-! 35| . 2016609|Bacton & D & Co.
R e o ;

(A Pradeep Sekar __|Ass!-Vice President [M.Tech (iIT), MBA (IIM 5-Mar-2001] 27, *209032(Citi Bank
‘S.g-niniA-g!arwal ll_)lradot . Com. 1 !
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‘ Home Trade Limited

10-Jul-2000 : *1486775HIndustan Coca-Cola Baverages

nvestment Research Information
58268201Service Lid (IRIS]

A et comninda s

aflsman Group of Companies Ltd.
a Tarun Bansal \Vice Praaldant CFM, CMA, MBA 101 1-Nov-2000{~ 35 *goz427i(U
ant 4-Dec-2000 fa4S(CItl Bank

Vinayak Hampihalikar Asst-Vice Pres|

Vivek Luthra
Vinod Menon

8 22-Jun-2000 31| 2092908iCH Bank

6| 1-Fab-2000 3 87045 Pl’iCNl-!thOUSO Coopars Lid.
19 2a.Juko00] 32 3073681lAshiech Infotech Lid_-

* indicates employed for part of the year.
1. Remuneration comprises of basic salary, allowances and taxable value of perquisites.

gl Ma gw:amplnyeasare related 1o eny direcior of the Gompany. - By Order of the Board
S Al ok iy mtyen i s y Order of the Boa

4 For Home T.ade Lim'ied

N 8 Trivedi.

Executive Director & Secretary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Home Trade is in the process of operationally establishing ils busi

123

75,608
/ : "

106 ) ,«1’“{&:

-Qcc)

maodel and
has achieved t progress with regard o the implementation of it4 plans over
the last one-year.
It has been

challenging, exciting and rewarding year where the ny formally
gy and businass intent and achieved i t pro

implementation of its Corporate plans. The outline of the company’s| plans and
below.

perational progress fo establish itself as a
services company. The cpmpany is

and offering innovative products and services that extend beyond getting ['more from

The company is aiming to revolutionize financial services by
productisali;

Establishing a strong business foundation

g true

on of financial services, by braaking the bamiers of tionally

dccepted gnanclal products, by establishing a strong weil . l‘and well

regarded randandempamnng' i lhaconsmnarbymppumnghs iitives with
cutling edge technologies.

Home Trade is creating an exceplionally strong business siructure thal has a rock
solid foundation and physically powerful pillars that wili support the wabnm:nt and
rapid growth of the company’s business in a sus

tainable and scalable m

long term basis.

nship management initiatives,

2\ “11-
v ¢

8ls such

nd physical routes to deliver hi-tech and hi-touch. service. The

Company adopls besl-in-class technology solltions ang




VANTHEA

/24’ Home m@;m

Achle\}ed operatiom';ul -progress in line with plan

Built an exceptional management team: Home Trade has created an ‘exceptic
high guality management team that has a set objective of establishing an outstas
business operation that can continuously grow,and reward lis stakeholdars o
long term period. The company's key talent pool comprises 48 individuals \who
excellent academic qualifications and record, and bring with them diverse l?tpuri
that can be synergistically deployed o grow the company’s business |

Created naiiun-wide sales infrastruciure: in order to support the company’s
centric operaling approach Home Trade has established a national sales

both agent and customer training centers to provide high quality consumer
| The 's sales stralegies have been validated by PricewaterhouseCoapers.

Established customer care channels: Home Trade has established _'
customer interaction infrastructure that provides single point, multiple channel ac:

Trade rewards’programme — which will be the first of iis kind In India. *

Installed best-in-class technology infrastructure: The company has : opeaali

: i tec! .. struci
Homadeshasiwtaﬂadh@vohmeT&ndembpaedOL’l’Ptradng . 1t b

oﬂbaopamﬂmuamnmhy?ﬂwwatemouaeCWm.Thalechnn gy allows
seamless user expsrience through state-of-the-art roliters and bﬂtﬂjﬂ.

company uses VSNL, Satyam and Nst Magic server T3 1o aliow fast downlo
and 24°7 availability. The XML created website half & million pages of con
adaptability even for mobile and hand-held:devices. Home Trade has engaged W

Cotpomlbnlomumhighqunﬂ!ymmkoﬁngmdmahmweo“hemmp;
technology infrastructura. :

Created a dis mbandmmﬁmmemmmyhncmlednpmgﬁulmmybbr
building campalgn using thrae of India's biggest icons — Hrithik, Sackin and S
Rukh with the objective of making finance fun, easy and exciting and alsp challsn;
the existing paradigms of finance. The brand promotion exercise'thas| alre
ammmmgnincamsuccasswhhmeadwﬂishgbelngmnkedamqngbp‘

CMIE, Multex Barra and Crisll just 1o mention a few. Thegompany
the support of competent and specialized allianc? parngfs it will,
advaniage of having access to the most cor-pstent m?

operations. | "

Succassiully i:rp!emanted the first step of establishing oﬁstandi
The company in a short span of five months has establis 7 F :
the most comprehensive business and financial destinatios in the niry. THe onl
site has over half a million pages of news, information, a alysis and expert g

and has over fve million page view a month with over a hfndfed thous

«12- T
4
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users. lis online presence uses pioneering Igitialj
and audio bytes 10 provide an unparalieled user experience {o its audj

such as b nd wthL\

In conciusion @ Y l 66 \60\

company believes that it has a potential to establish a unique business modal that
provide high quality returns to all the company’s stakeholders.

Home Trade is ploneering a new concept in the ?I—nancial servicas sactor. ‘H‘F:m

REVIEW OF SPECIFIC Bl.leNESS ASPECTS
Sector roview

The financlal services secior has been maintaining its ste
well as in the global madcnl.'l'hahdustryhasbeangmwing

the giobal information technology sector. The company believes that the g
the seclor will continue on a sustainable basis.

In India the financial serices seclor is gaining malturity at a rapld pace,

pmgressivahﬂiaﬁvasbahgundeﬂnkenbysmandmawagramn of the damejtic

capital markets with the intemational environment is like
business opportunities 1o innovative panies within this sectar.

Business wise performance review

Since the company Is still in thaestahﬂshmefaandeonstrucﬂonphaselhebus!mas
wise pednmanmmviswisnotoirdsvamamuﬂsﬂage.

Financlal performance review

and
ﬁnancialpedonnameofmmhushassisnotoilﬂma:mlsstaga.
Company has incurred the loliowing capital expensaes in the year under reviaw.

a. Web site and related software expenses As.20.10 crores.
b. Computer hardware Rs7.87 crores.
c. Brand and web site promotional expenses As.19.63 crores.

Key business apportunity and threats review

demonstrate ability to hamess advances in technology, specifically in !
provide comprehensive and unparalleled financial products and services 1o fulfili

consumer needs have the polential to establish compelling business propositions| in
the future.

Business risks and concerns review

The company's operations are subject to operaling risks most of which are al

generic to the sect > - and similar businesses within the industry. Th

include technology#elated’; .‘ff"c . 3bility of the business to adapt to a rapi ly
Al ~
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changing environment, risks associated with the securities business, risks of entering

new products and markets, compelitive risks and risks related
gavemment regulations.

to the change ir

Howsver, tha company believes that the soundness ~f the business model comiﬁnac
with the prior expearience of management in this erea of business will help address
i

the various risks that are inherent 1o this business.

Cautionary Statement- Statemenis in the Managament Discussion and w::
describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectatioris o

may be Torward Iooking statements* within the meaning .of applicable
securilies laws and regulations. Actual results could differ malerially from fhase

expressed or Wemrmmmumwmmmmmwﬂ
be reslised, wabeﬁemwahambampnmhourplam;ym
assumptions. nt of fulure results is subject to risks, uncertainties ‘anc
hmmmmpm&ammmmwm
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CORPORATE GOVERNANTE REPORT ](;l

Pursuant to Clause 49 1o the Listing Agreement, a report on cggm
below :- e —_—

1 Philosophy on Code of Governance:- Your~cofipany is firmly

2. Board of Directors :- The present Board of Dirgctors consists of :-

()] Mr. Sanjay Agarwal - Chairman & Wholeatime Diraclor.

()] Mr. N.S. Trivedi - Executive Director & Secretary.

(i} Mr. Manoj A. Shah - Non Executive Director,

{iv) Mr. Dhananjay Agarwal - Non Execulive Director.

{v) Mr. Shashank G. Ranade — Non Executive Director.**

{vi} Mr. Salil D. Gandhi- Non Executive Director,**

(vil)  Mr. Vijaykumar H. Modi - Non Executive Director. **

(vill)  Mr. Alan James McMillan - Non Executive Director, **

{ix) Mr. Russel H. Backenkroager Jr. - Non Execulive Director. **

** - Indicatas Independent director. :
The Board nfDIractmshasmatFiﬁeanlﬁneslnmayaarundarreview.
3. Audit Committes :- The company has constituted an Audit Committee &

the provisions of Section 2924 of the Companies Act, 1855. Mr. Shash:
Hmdewasappo;ntedaatheChalmanolthaCommae. The othet members of -

The s

Shashank G, Ranade was appolnted as the Chairman of the Committes. Ths

members of the committee are Mr, Salii D. Gandhi, Mr. Vijaykumar H. Modi ahd Mr. =
N.S.Trived!, Executive Director and Secretary. The Company Secrelary acts s the
Secretary of the Commitiee.

5 Shareholders Greivances Committee :- The any has capstilujed a

Listing Agreement. Mr. Shashank G. Ranade was appointed as the Chalrman|of the - _
Committes. The other members of the Committee are Mr. Salil D. Ga '
Vijaykumar H. Modi and Mr. N.S.Trivedi, Executive Director and Secretan). The &
Company Secretary acls as the Secratary of the Committee.

6. Accounting Standards and Financlal Reportings :- The Compa
incorporated the necessary accounting siandards as prescribed from lo time
company has been publishing the Quarterly reporis of the company as
provisions of the Listing Agreement.

i Board Procedures :- The Board of Direclors of your Company meet at least ohce in 2
three months in 2 calendar year. The Directors of your Company are nolified
advance of the agenda and holding of a Board Meeling. During the fin

anc & 1
2000 -2001, the Board of Directors of your Company met Fifteen times .ghich were
well atlended, S

The members of Board ol‘,‘gizg:_l_mi have free and undisturbed access to the i the i
information about yo;/lp impany,

v At can recommend the inclusion and remolal of %-
w ;

any matter from the zge  mgeling.
y aia N S,
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()  Compliance Officer :- Mr. N.S. Trivedi, Execuliva Direclor & Secretary has| bee
designated as the Compliance officer of the Company. ; LSE

{i Management := The company has voluntarily disclosel the Managa;ném
Discussion Analysls Report in the Annual Report 2000-2s71, even thougli+th
company will ba compulsorily required fo includs the same on or before 31* Aarcl
2002,

{iii) Auditors Canin:hle on Corporate Governance - AS ATTACHED. : ¥
By Order of the ?oat
i
For Home Trade Limite
NSTr
Executive Direcfor & Sectelar,
Mumbai, 14 August, 2001. gi ,
N o
1 ‘
| 2
To { ‘ |
The Board of Directors I ’ |
Homa Trade Umited | }
_ i :
Dear Skr, |
i

We hereby cenify that he Company has complied with the provisions of clause 49 to th
listing agreement with eflect from May 15, 2001. {4

|
For Parimal f Shah & Co.
Charterad Accounianis |

Parimal R Shah
Propristor

Date: June 30, 2001

the date on which it deliverad 5
%\M Az A v
i -« 16 -

Place: Mumbai | L ?q
{ Fx ' §

o=
e ‘

e ; ? ;
AT i >Th t T 0

il ga P jch_copy applieg ' 'fé
'Tur....‘.glﬁtgﬁ...me date on Cmmﬁ,.’—a:?-?—?l !
which the applicafiod 1s compleled apvme '

BT vl respacf..&.-b]):ﬁ.% ST, Companng Charges

' . ‘the date given to_they appjicant g

S lprtaking daliihw-’l&el-ll Ll.s 33per Charges i
Tthe ‘date on which the gopy wus Jurcharges
ready for delivery 29 rfl“elf—

| Asst Supdt Recor® Keepes
C.J.M. Court. Nagpur
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORAMTION
Tl eene INFORAMTION

i Eight Annual General Meeting :-
Date :- 28" September, 2001,
Time :- 10 :00 AM.

Venue :- 124 A, Sohrab Hall, 21, Sasoon Hall, Puns-411001. |

(ii) Financial Calendar --
Date of AGM :- 28th September, 2001. 5

Date for taking on records the Unaudited quarierly resuits :-

a. For June 30™ 2001 - July 31, 2001.

b. For September, 2001 - Last week of Ocl er, 2001.
€ For Decamber.zoo1-—tastweekulJanua , 2002, -
d. For March, 2002 - Last week of April, A
()  Date of Bock Closure :- 27 September, 2001 10 29* September, 2001 ( ivajof
both days) £

(®@  Dividend Payment Date :- On or after 4™ October, 2001

(M) Listing on Stock Exchange :- The Pune Stock Exchange and The &5
ange. The Annual Listing fees for the said exchanges has baen paid in

) Stack Code - INE 851A01024,

{vi) Registrar & Transfer Agent:-Mis R& D Consultanis Limited, 610, Dal
211, Nariman Polnt, Mumbaj — 400 021. Tel.: 022-2834347. Fax.:- 022-2p55) 59,

(vi)  Share Transfer System :- The shares of the Company are in mpuladiy
demalerialization mode. The Company also effects physical share transf uplo the
limits. 3

specified !
(viil)  Distribution of Shareholders :- {As on Juns 30, 2001)
Share Holding of Nominai Value Share Holders
: Numbers %
i 5,000 10131 99.18
5,001~ 10,000 13 0.13;
10,001~ 20,000 13 0.1
20,001~ 30,000 7 £ 0.0
30,001 - 40,000 3 i 0.0
40,001 -~ 50,000 4 ; 0.
50,001 - 1,00,000 1 0.
1,00,001 ~ 2,00,000 2 Q.
2,00,001 - 3.00,000 2 P 0.
3,00,001 - 95,989,990 39 B3 0.3
Totatl 10215 .F 100.

(X} Dematerialization :- The Company has entered into Agreement | Nationg ;
Secur{li@s Depository Limited {NSDL) and Central Deposilory Sarvices ndia} Limited:
{CDSL). < e

N : & g
1%\,  Address for Correspondance - :
=\ Registered Office :- 124, Sohrab Hall, 21, Sasoon Road, Pune - 411 og1. g

1 Corporate Office :- Intemational Infotech Park, Tower No.4, 5% floor, Vaghi , Navi &

| Mumbai- 400 705, : :
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1.

1/20, Bakul, Lallubhal Park, Andheri -West,Mumbai-58

The Members, :
Home Trade Limited 5

! Z 0 Home Trade Limltn&.l

e

AUDITORS REFORT | s
PRy i
7 PARIMAL R. SHAH & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNT.

Tel: 022-6249031

*

We have sudited the anached Balance Sheet of HOME TRADE LIMITED as at Masch
31,2001 and the Profit and Loqs Account of the Company for the psriod ended on lhatdm
annexed therelo, and report that:

As required by the Mas

i

ing and Oiher Companies (Auditors® Report) Order, 1988-

issued by the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227(4A) of the Companfés:

Act, 1858, we enclosse
paragraphs.

Further to our comimenis in the Annexure referred to in paragraph (1) above:

{a)

()

{c)

{d)

(e}

U]

Dated: 30-6-2001 which the application Tpleled

we have oblained a !hamiounaltnnandaxplanahonmchtnlhabamo!mr
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in uwophioﬂprupellbooksofaecoumasrequlmdbylawhavabasnkeplbylhe
Company so far as appurs from our examination of these baoks;

IheBalancaStmelandleitandLnssAemumdenuwilhbyuﬂsmponamm
agreemsnt with the books of account;

T W

In ourophiontheBahmaSheetamPruﬁtand!.oss&mounfdaaltwﬂhbydﬁa
mpoﬁarelncomp{hncavdmmeAcwunllngsmndmdsmianadthecﬁon
211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956, in so far as they are applicable to, the
Company; L

On the basis of the written reprasaniation received from Directors as on 31 -3-2Q01
and taken on record by the Board of Directars, we report that none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31-3-2001 from being appointed as a director in terms of claﬂsa
(9) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Companles Act, 1958,

ﬁ

in our opinion and to the bast of our information and knowledge and gcr.nrd!ng to
explanations given to us, the said accounis read fogsther with Sign
Accounting policies and Notes to accounts thereon as per Schedule 13 and
paricularly for Note No.5, give the informafion required by the. Companies
1956, mlhamannetso required and give a true and fair view;

® InmecaseonhaaalancaShea!.o!ﬂmslaiaofaﬁairsuilhat:ompannas
at March 31, 2001;and ‘

i) In the case ol the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the period anded

on that dalar I
‘ B .
{ . - 1'5
i
ne uate\ »Trh cony ar\n!wd
Place: Mumbai IOr-l.A':l AR 1A S the date on

lin ali  téspect.. a5l

ithe da!\eg given o the z.%eltuznl
for taking delivery .. -
M O ‘the date on which- theé copy wass 5
g ready for delivery 2 ¢) j t.‘{\ &'.Lg
ggii‘:m the date on which it was deljue:s
- ksstt. sassssany T 7
.M. Cour E ﬁﬂ &\“SLS ¥
o b i A
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ASatl.

AUDITORS REPORT
PARIMAL R. SHAH & CO . ef ) Q‘r:q’
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (Jest ~—

Annexure raferred to in

Paragraph 1 of the Audilors’ H'apoﬁ
FRADE LIMITED on the

accounts for the year ended March 31, 2001:

internal Controls

P’

e Limited

/@?‘

g

to the Members lf HOME

regard 1o the explanations that
suitable altemative
scope for strengthening internal control P ures commensurale wit
of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of d

hardware and software, plant and machinery, equipment and othe
services and for the sale of goods.

Intemmal audit
nature of its business.

Fixed Assels

4. "The Company is in process of updating
particulars, including quantitative details
physically verified during the year by
programme of verification, formulated during the year, In our opinion, thers
for increasing the frequency of verification, having regard to the
COnwnyand!bcmquofﬂsassgts.Ashfomdtous, no discreps
noliced by the management on such physical verification.

5. None of the Fixed Assels have been revalued during the period.
Inventories

6. Inventories of shares/securilies have been

year-end.

dures for physical verification of Shares/securities followed by manag

- {¥alation 1o the size of the Company and the nalure of its business is
qu‘ate_

certain items purchased are of a spacial natu
sources do not exist for oblain:? comparalive quotations, ghe

system needs to be strengthened commensurate fo the s

the management in accouiam i
5 @ scope

\ fn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given Ij us,

" 8./ n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1q
3 / discrepancies belween the physical stock and book stock which were not s

relation 1o the operations of the company, have been properly dealt with in the
Account.

valuation of stocks of Shares/Securities has been fair and proper in acco

normally accepled accounti
preceding year.

iples in India and is on the same basis

On the basis of our examination of Stock of Shares/securities, in our opi ioF!'-lpif‘
n

physically verified by Managemeht at the

is%
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6‘/' % : Loans and advances ! '

10. The parties inciuding iemptoyaas to whom loans or advances in the nature of loans have

been given by the Company, are generally regular in repaying the principal amounts,as
slipulated and interest where applicable. ¢

11. The Company has taken loans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms, or ather
parties fisted in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companles Act, 18%6,
or from companies under the same management as defined under Section 370 (1B) of
the Companies Act, 19586, the rate of interest and other terms and condilions of ‘'which
are not prima facis, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. +4

12..The Company has granted loans, sacured or unsecured fo companies, firms, off ather
parties listed in the register maintajned under Section 301 of the Companies Act31958,
or to companles under the same management as defingd undermf:gQﬂB) o(tha
Companies Act, 1858, the rate of intergst and other terms and of which ara
not, prima facle, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. ' f

Related parties

13.The Company has entered into transactions for sale of goods and sarvices in '
of contracts or arangements enlered in the regisier maintained under saction 301 of the
Companles Act, 1956 |aggregating during the period 1o Rs.50,000 or more in respect of
each party and the ferms and conditions of such tra=sactions are prima-facle not
prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

Fixed Deposits i

14. In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the
Company hnsnoiamgptad any deposits from the public.

Taxation

1&Ammmmmmw-mmmnmmmtwru
Rs.52.71 lacs, Income’ Tax for Rs.188.38 lacs, Tax Deducted at soprce un,
varlous heads under Income tax of Rs.98.71 lacs, there are no u B
payable in respect of fincome tax, wealth tax, sales tax, customs duty and ]
whk:hamoutslandhgasaluamhm.zom.loraperiodo!momlhansb:mon from
the dates that they became payable . !

Staff welfare

78. Provident Fund and ESIC wherever appiicable, have been generaly regulary derjosited
by the company in time during the year with the appropriate authorities. : {

17.0nlhebasisolmeexamﬁn.allunofﬂnbodtsolaccoumcanhdwtbyuahmoidapm
with generally accepied audiling practices and according to the information and
explanation given fo 8, no other persohal expenses of employees or directors, have
been charged to the profit and loss account, other than those payabjle under

obligations or in ancortllance with generally accepted business %
'} i e

18. The Ceniral Gwemm;am has not prescribed the maintena
Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956, for any of the
{

19. The Company is not a sick indusirial company within the meaRiy
the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985,

¥, T=al
20D 4
20. The company is generally maintaining proper records of the transagtiofiz=gtid
enlered inlo for dealing or trading or invesiments in shares, gaqufih'aqf'

-20-




investments and timely entries have been rein. Thi-share
investments unless otherwise specified, are held by the company ip
held with valid transfer documents. (@ 5_5,-{'

21. The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis o
: Pledge of shares, debenlures and othar securities.

The matters contained in paragraphs 4A (i), (iv), (v), {(vi), (xil), (xvi) and {xx) in nps
physical verification and vaiuation of invenlory, unserviceabls or damaged sicres
malerial and finished goods, records for sale and disposal of realisable by prod
scrap, maintenance of cost records and sick industrial companies are not applicatjle
Company in respect of the year under audit.

Placs: Mumbai PARIMAL RS
Dated: 30-6-2001

R

- 21 -
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HOME TRADE LIMITED X
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2001

Asat As at

Schedule 31.03.01 31.03.00

__(®s) - Rs)

SOURCES OF FUNDS ; ;

1. Shareholders’ Funds : ' 7 -
Share Capital 1 239,610,000 239,610,000
Reserves and Surplus 2 304,447,956 41,669,806

2.Loan Funds i
Secured 3 413,498,462 149,812,781
Unsecured 4 45,154,582 33,498,274

Total 1,002,708,000 434,620,940

APPLICATION OF FUN gEC.NO° & |

1. Fixed Assets (Includh T3 8) S
Gross Block NO- 376,282,824
Less : Deprecias REG- ™ 46,705,837 2

Net Block e 329,576,087 75,920,361

2. Investments e e 6 54,797,722 §,448,73:

3. Current Assets, Loans &, .n~= 7 753,941,401 416,769,32

Less: Current Liabifities . e W 8 240,784,240 £5.118,28'
Net Current Assels L 513,157,161 327,681,04
4. Miscellaneous Expenditun . ="~ ﬂ// 9 105,177,131 10,570,80!
Total e T 1,002,709,000 M
§ i " ety A [ [ ] "
Significant accounting policies | i
the Accounts 13 :
As per our attached report of ever) date For and on tghalf of the Board
iuol g 80  Hong: Trade Limited
For Parimal i. Shah & Co.
Charlered niants ally je et - A i )
V2 garwal !
ajisiec! Craimman

ParimaiR. S
N.S.Trivedi

Proprietor
: Director &
\/’wL & Secretary
P H Modi
Date : June s Jorsed

3 R L
v - 1
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HOME TRADE LIMITED @ g
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR EyDED MARCH 31,
Schedule 2000-2001 99
INCOME B e
In from Broking Operations L /Cg s2 u 2,608,011
_&ain~ on sale of Investmenis/Securities 668.021 486 121,418,408
(Refer Nole No.13 of Schedule 13) oo
Interast 1,338,268 17.8:;.9 (5]
Other Income 10 2,897,436 3,3p7.671
Total 672,257,190 145,329,
EXPENDITURE
Administrative & General Expenses 11 180,624,803 46,844,377
interest 48,635,928 20,832,666
Depreciation 25,719,741 5,976,039
Other Non Cash Charges 12 101,653,528 374,350
Total 356,634,005
Profit before tax 315,623,184
Provision for Income Tax 25,075,000
Provision for Wealth Tax 50,000
Profit after tax 290,498,184
Less: Provision for Interest on Income Tax for
earlier years (4,345,112)
Add: Provision no longer required for Seivice tax 3,000,000
{Refer Note & of Schedule 1 3} 289,153,072
Add : Net profit brought forward 34,876,285

Proprielor

Place : Mumbai
Date : June 30, 2001

i et~ A

U amd
\" “\‘p- ~g
Authorised Signatory/ Diroctor

Executive Direciog:
For HOME TRADE LIMITED %
Vi]nyklimaﬁ

Profit available for Appropriations 324,123,368
Appropriations

Proposed Dividend 23,961,000

Dividend Tax 2,444,022

Transler to General Reserve 8,500,000
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 289,224,346

~—— =
As perpul\atiached report of éven date For and on behalf of the
; £ L, Home Trade L
Shah & Co. - Sanjay Agarwal

F, S TS R QPR L WA "J"&
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"z 1 4. UNSECURED LOAN

(36

HOME TRADE LIMITED '
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

1. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised !
15,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.2/- each
{Previous year 3,00,00,000 thﬂy shares of Rs.10 each}

issued, Subscribed and Paid up

11,88,05,000 equity shares of Rs.2/- each fully paid up
(Previous year 2,39,61 000 equity shares of fAs. 10 each fuity
paid up) i

2. RESERVES AND SURPLUS |
General Reserve ?
Add : Transfer from Profit & Loss Account

‘Balance in Profit and Loss Aeuuun‘l

3. SECURED LOANS
Hire Purchase Finance |
{Secured by hypothecation ql motor cars )

Hire Purchase Finance
{ Secured by hypothecation of Motor Vehicla)

Overdraft facility from Bank
(Secured by pledge of ngmmenl Securities)

Cash Credit Facility from Bank

(Secured by pledge of Government Securities)

Term Loan from Banks |

{(Secured by hygoshecallon‘ of stock in frade,
recelvables and pledge of equity shares)
Repayable within a year : fis.1 8,339,475 (previous year: As.
15,330,000) !

Global Housing Finance dorp. Ld
{Secured by mortgage of residential properiies)

Letter of Credit from Bank

(Secured by hypo!hacallon of stock in trads,
receivables and pledge o/ certain equity shares)

i

“ %, Short term

,From Othars- Inter Corphra!e Deposils

Home Trade Limited _

As at = As'at
31.03.01 31.03.00
(Rs) I(Rs)

‘R
300,000,000 aoo.w;&ooc
300,000,000 300,00D,00¢

;

239,610,000 239,610,001

39,610,000 m&inlou

6723611 522351
8.500,000 _ 1,500,0¢
15,223,611 6,723 ,81
289,224,346 34,9762
204,447,956 41,689,891
= 5855
£
241,842,333 195,879
38,853,273 —
28,091,062 32111,
4709804 5,387
— 15,84¢
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, Home Trade Limited ,

SCHEDULE §
5 : :
ARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
ason Additions Dslelions 88 as onAddllionsOn Op Bal  Additions  Delellons o8 or* ason aso
31.03.0 1.4.00 31.,03.0% 91.05,01 31,03,
rademark 0 1217200 0 1,217, 0 101433 0 101433 1,116,767 a
0 8,312,800 6,233,038 0 146 39,722 8620 135489 1«.12'3 0 183,850 14,361,988 8,273,
Compuler Hardware 37,428,540 78,710,017 2,187,872 113,050,665 12,607,6394,010,066 5,712,836 10,078,032 14817 22,970,854 80,980,031 z4.sai.nq 5
Websllo & Retated Sottwara | 14,763,050 201,026,268 29,200 216,760,118 4,080,609 416,814 2,380,357 13,967,031 1183 16,035,737 187,724,380 10,693,151
Furniture & Fixtures 4478,741 1,812,517 18500 6,272,768 12144780 62,007 283,568 346,475 0 1.568,954* 4,711,804 3,265,
Molor Vehicles 3,657,001 0 289,266 3,367,735 1,365,046 0 247416 316773 106932 1,574,887 1,702,048 2,201,
Office Equipments 12,388,368 6,302,479 26,500 20,662,347 1512453 177,421 500,447 765,869 0 2278322 18,384,025 10,875,91
iCapital Advances/WiP 0 0 606,143 20,000,000
TAL 61,020,500 297,301,510 2,554,338 375,776,601 21,109,130 4,676,637 0,456,122 25,718,741 123,042 46,705,837 320,576,886 7!.920.3815
Previous Year 41,205,038 40,264,043 531,302 31.029.484 15,264,846 5,876,039 1a1,747 21.103.13{59.020.331
T -
L >
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HOME TRADE LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

6. INVESTMENTS

( Trade) (Unquoted) (At mat)
Stock Exchange Memberships |

a. Bombay Stock

128

b. National Stock Exchange - WDM Segment
c. National Stock Exchange - CM Segment

_ d. Pune Stock Exchange

e. Over The Counter Exchange Of Indla

Equity Shares {Refer note no. 14 of Schedule 13}

7. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

A. CURRENT ASSETS
i) Inlerest accrued

ii) Cash and Bank Balances

a. Cash on hand

b. Balances with Scheduled Banlts
In Fixed Deposit Accounts |

in Current Accounts

In Unpaid Dividend Acmun!

iii) Debtors

{ Unsecured, considered good )

a. More than six months
b. Others

iv) Stock in Trade - Government Securilies

( pledged with banks }

(Refer note no.15 of Schedule 13)

Total (A)

T
I

Home Trade Lirn!t:ed ;
Asat As at
316301t ' 31.03.00
{As} {Rs)

-
s

14,050,000 %l 14,050,000

2,500,000

2.50000C

500,000 ;
2347222 § 2,347.222

20000008 25 Jot
21,387,222 21.397.221

i

b1
£
33,400,500 ' 25,051,511

54,797,722 3: 48&8.73:

3147358 2.387,01

81,448 378,898

3,520,001 10,266,0(
24, 497 a'rz

13,422.7:
286485% 2;!:053.7-
! .
s
45,09 1,676,1

232 245,091 t1 676,1
1

422,974,959 352,097.3

. |
_§87,015,929 .390,229.1

it bt o b 3 s i __u,“—___




HOME TRADE LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

7.  CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

B. LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)

i) Advances recaverabla in cash or in kind or for value

to be received ;
Staff Loans & Advances
Other advacnes
i Ceposits ¢
sits wit . a :

Natlonal Stock Exchange - WDM Ssgment
National Stock Exchange - CM Segment/NSCCL
Bombay Stock Exchange

Pune Stock

OTC Exchange of India

Deposit NSE VSAT

Other Deposits :
Depaosit - premises
Sundry Depaosits

i) Other current assels:
Other current assats
Advance Income Tax

Total (B)

Total (A) + (B)

ome Trade c(
o Olart
&

32,779,695% 4,888,889
M.m,m.i G,EFG.BB'?

C-b/
{ ¢+ Asal As\a't/
31.02.01 30.03.00
{Rs) {RAs)
6,336,901 1
4,165,564
10,502,465
7.500,000
8,387,042
600,000
400,000
50,000
91,434
17,028,478 14,283,133
3,165,500 540
1,745,549 848
21,939,525! 15211,
17037875 |

66,925 472 |

26,570,148
1o

753,941,401

416,709,323

Sk _‘.a.-v--mﬁb%;ﬁ_-:-,.;..
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-HOME TRADE Ligrren

.8, MISCELLANEOYS EXPENDITURE

(To the extent not written off op ad}usted;
Pmﬁm!nary Expenses -
Less: Written off during the year

Brand & Website Promo
Less - Written of during the year

?. ¥
it e

h x TS
L o
5§42 Y,
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; HOME TRADE LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

3
: 100THER INCOME f
Miscellaneous Income 2,635,725 2008{059
Sundry Balances wrilten back 261,710 1,155,899
Bad Debts Recovery 13
2,897,438 3

11. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Rent,Rates & Taxes 13,981,310
Salaries, Wages & Allowances 44,737,633
Cont. to Employess P.F. eic 2,982,832
Stafi Welfare 2,070,383
Travelling & Conveyance 14,521,253
Communinication cost 15,278,150
Genaral Administrative Expenses . 14,058,722
Legal & Professional Fees 10,780,685
Donation 2,074,002
Sundry Balances & Deposits writtan off 2,264,418
Loss on Sale of Assels 132,324
Stock Exchange Charges E 2,673,511
Aepairs & Maintainence - Others , 6,134,813
Auditors Remuneration :

- For Statutory Audit 157,500

- For Tax Audit 52,500

- Out of packst exp, Audit
Portal - Sofiware & Consultancy expenses 41,288,466
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss 215,227
Investmenis written off 50,010
Registrar and transfer expenses 164,544
SEBI Tumover Fees 1,362,446
Recruitment Exp 5,624,084 3,598

180,624,803 46

12:0THER NON CASH CHARGES
‘Delferred Revenua Expenses written off : 101,653,529
Prelirfiingy Expenses written off

101,653,529 374,

1
O A
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HOME TRADE LIMITED |
13. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL! CIES:

HMethod of accounting

The accounts have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the applicable
accounting principles in India, accounting standards lssued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the relavant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

fAevenue Recognition

o
income from brokerage aclivities is recognized on the trade dale of the transaction,
mplforspotuansacﬁona.mqemnismagnmdmdmedmammﬁon and
accounted for net of sub-brokerage, where applicable.

Profivioss on sale of government and other securities (stock In trade) and investments is
recognized on the date of transaction. :

TR

Fixed Assets and Depraciation

- :?' ‘-
thedmetaamstamda!cost.~nepmdmhnh mderSmighlUnalémodﬁt
the rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Comparies Act, 1958, except forWebsite
& Related Software and Trademarks. Expenses incurred in relation t~davelopment of the
Website & Related Software of the company and the facilities to enable. conduct of
broking mmmghmapondl.havebeanmpuaisadonmempuﬂvadatpsd thelr
launch. MSQexpmﬂshmpeandassﬂbdandmphaﬂzedasMaﬂdmndﬂnw
under the head "Website & Related Sonwares'andaredapmdatedovarapeﬁodof
three years, being the management’s estimale of the useful fife of the asseis.
Trademaris are depreciated over a period of 12 years.

es towards repalr of ng benefit to the interiors of office pramises not owned
byﬂwaCumpanyareappomuﬂedovaﬂhaprimawpaﬁodolmehasa.

f ':0.4-’;...1‘";‘" ;\f:l‘,“??"’r‘v_-r o

g | 5"-‘". 33

Investments and Stock-in-Trade

{a) The Shares and other securities acquired with the intention of short term holding and trading
positions are considered as stock-in-trade and shown as current assets. Other Shares/
securities or stock exchange membership rights acquired with the intention of long-term
holding are considered as nvestments’. 2

{b) Investmenis are shown in the Bala}nca Shee! at cost. Provision for diminution in fge vahﬁx ol |
investments is made, il such diminution is of permanent nature. 2 ®

{c) Stock-in-trade is valued as follows : 7
Shares al the cost of acquisii‘]on or market value whichever is lower/

Securities at the cost of acquisition and interes! accrued thereon § .dg.\g;df acquisition, if
any, or markel value, which ever is lower o>
WP et T ~ s
,:-'// =374 . : Tai 3
b R s {78 ,
R
-30 - : . z
5 34 i
- ,,;.‘ P T S 1
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Sundry Debtors and Creditors

“A:..oums recaivable from. and payable to clients for broking transactio | ;
on iradeftransaction date basis and disclosed separalely as Sundry Debtors and
Creditors. Bad debts /Advances are written off i e year in which they become @

irecuverable. - ;
;/{:0.{,_3
Foreign Exchange transaclions
Transaclions in foreign cumencies are translatsd to Indian Rupees at the rale of

exchange ruling on the date of transaction. Foreign currency llabilities coverad by forward

@.contracts are stated at the rate Specified in the related forward contracts, The
difference between forward rale and exchange rate at the incepiion of the forward
exchange contract is recognized as income or expense over the life of the contract.

I
Miscellaneous Expenditure ‘
i) Guarantee commission and charges paid 1o the banks for guarantee given by them to i
other pariies are apportioned over the period of the guarantes.
(A
il) Deferred Ravenue Expenditure .

Delanadmvenuammauduummmdbyummmpmymamowsadmapeﬂodof | :
thmayaa:s.communclnglmmmeyaarhmchsud\oxpenﬁmmisinqlm !

iii) Brand & Web Promotional expensas i ]
Expendilure incumed on development of brand & Web Promotional expenses by the |
Company are writlen off in two years from the year in which such expendilure is incumred. 3

Relirement Benefits >

{a) Gratuity Liability is covered under Employees’ Group Gratuity Accumulation Scheme with ; ,
Lile Insurance Corporation of India and annual premium payable thareon is charged to I :
Account. |

Prior Period & Extra Ordinary ltems

ltems of income & expendilure partaining 1o prior period, where materialin the opinion of
the Management ars disclosed separalely.

Provision for Taxation

Provision for income tax is made on the assessable income at applicable rates.
2 Propgja/d Dividerjd and Dividend Tax

’

d Is accounted on the recommendation of the Board of Directors,
approval at ensuing General Meeling. Provision for Corporate dividend 1ax
!s made aser the provision of law,

Contingent Liabilities

All known liabilities have been provided in accounts except liabilities of conlingent nature,
which has been disclosed by way of noles 1o the accounts,

s [
Al
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2 Contingent Liabiities not provided for: |

-

a. In respect of guarantees glven by Banks Rs. 25,00,000/ (Previous ! year:
Rs.40,00,000/-). | :

b. Contingent Liability
- Employee Bonus Liabllity — Amount unascertainable.
- TDS Surcharge Liability as per new rates - amount unascertainable.

c. Mmmmhmmmdbonpmmseslmmlmmn\emmmg
period and the same shall be paid on finalisation of the computation and debited in the

year of payment.
3. Fixed Assets and Capital chmﬂtﬁmw

The Websile of the company \nww.ho!fmunda.m’ containing a finance portal, has been
madamﬂ:htoﬂmpmﬁcallargeqnsmrzam The site contains information
Mmommmmhmmaﬁpmpoaedmmlr&nhﬂmﬁmmm
financial markets which is mainly of advisory nature. On February 28, 2001, the company
mmmhmmpumandmmmmmepmmmmmmammm
heﬁhymh:ym\dselsewdﬁasmudhunpoﬂd(us&rgﬂwmedmamwm). Tha
saldtmdhgiacﬂtyisnmdapossib!ebﬂheusedahmﬁ\gengha(nsoﬂwme}md relatod
hardware equipment. f .

mmmmmmwonwmgdmmwufmmnalammmmmm
sell secusilies have been capitalised a;ﬂxedasselsonSeplamharz.' 2000 and February 28,
mi.ﬂwmpacﬁvadalasotﬂmlrm!mnh. inaccordancewﬂhAsm-Aecounﬁmioribmd

assets.

Expenses incurred on the broking eng:ina. other software, content upto the date of the pmﬂg {,
launch and other expenses directly ‘related to the pontal/ facliity lo trade have beert! .
capitalised under the heading of "Websits and Belatad Software'. £ g

4. Salary, other benefits payable to employees and stalutory duesfiaxes raquimfd o Ly

thereon has been pmvld:‘ed by the management on mercantiie

| b

5. The company has changed its policy for accounting of bonus axpensas from payment
basis 1o performance basis. Bonus is payable based on assessment of employess’
performance during the 12 months commencing on the 1 of November each year. Since
the period of assessment of employees’ performance is not computed as at the balancs
shest date. No provision is made {or the bonus lar the period 1-11-2000 to 31-3-2001.

6. The company has writien back sgwinetaxamunﬁng!oﬁs. anlu:soneomplaﬁcnonhe
General Audit of Service Tax for the period from July 1984 to March 2000, which has
been shown under the head Provision no longer required for Service Tax.

bilurcation carried oul by The: s
Website & Related tbpé?

R
-
) L st

SRR 3
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o

3 8. Pending reconciliation of Dividend payment account with Bank, balance as pe i
iy L _Jks. Any adjustment thereto, will be accounied in the year of reconciliation. g -
y4
X%

9. Estmated amount of capital commilment net of advances is Rs.18,77,000/- (Praviuu#\_,‘ :
yaar: Rs. Nil) g
ix,oy

- 10. The Current Assels and Loan apd Advances are realizable at the Value stated in the
Balance Sheet in the ordinary course of the business.

LoamandAdvancashdudaanammﬁalﬂwhﬁl(maxlmumwtsﬁnzﬁngduﬁngmeyem ,
Rs. 3,50,000/) (previous year Rs. Nil), outstanding from a direclor of the Company. i

11. Sundry Debtors

The management reviews, on periodical basis, the oulstanding debtors with a view to
determining as to whether deblors are gaod, bad or doubtful, afier taking into consideration
all the relevant aspects, including the tangible, intangible, primary collateral security
available, financial condition of deblors, the net worth, standing and repuiation of the
guarantor, il any, past perdormance /projecled future performance of the debtors. The
management delermines whether a debtors is doubtful or bad, wholly or in part and on the
basis of such reviews, the Board of Direclors determines the extent of bad debls to be wrilten
off in the accounts.

12. Some Deblors, Creditors and Advances are subject to reconciliation and resultant
adjustments if any and are thus taken up as per Baoks.

A

13. During the year company has sold 1,08,50,000 Equity shares of Rs.2 each of Ways India !
Limited, there being no comparalive quotation, as on dale of transfer, the shares were
sold based on the valuation canied-out by independent-Chartered Accountant, on which.
the audilors have relied.

14. Investmenis

investmant consists of
As on 31.03.01 As on 31.03.00
Equily Shares Numberof  Amount Number Amount
(Unquoted , Face Value of Rs. 10, fully shares As. of shares As.
paid up unless otherwise slatad}
Ways India Limited* : 16650000 3,33,00,000 25,00,000 2,50,00,000 !
Euro Asia Management Services Limited 10 100 10 100 |
Furo Asia Capital Management Limited 10 100 10 100 |
Euro Asig Finance Limited 10 100 10 100
10 100 10 100
10 100 10 1
1000 1.00,000 510 51 .0‘13
3,34,00,500 2,50,51,510 i

Rl
e
o A
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15. Stock in irade(quoted)
Stock in trade consisis of : 34
Particulars {Face Value) As on 31.03.01 As on 31.113.00
i
11.50% CG2010 {As 100 lacs) 11,121,250.00
11.50% CG2010 (Rs 200 lacs) 21,846,388.80
14.40% PSEB 2005 (Rs 100 lacs) 10,453,863.01
10.70 % CG 2020 (Rs 200 lacs) 20,721,722.22
11.03% CG2012 (Rs 210 lacs) 22,037,674.17
11.03% CG2012 (Rs 187 lacs) 19,807,684.11
11.03% CG 2012 (Rs 354 lacs) 37,500,439.33
11.43% CG2015 (As 213 lacs) 22,400,091.75
10.47% CG2015 (Rs 80O lacs) 80,575,933.33
10.47% CG 2015 {As 1500 lacs) 152,500,375.00
10.20 % CG2005 (Rs 100 lacs) 10,434,666.67
11.50% CG2015 (Rs 50 lacs) 5,474,652.78
12.30% CG2016 {Rs 15 lacs) 1,782,937.50
14% SDL 2005 (Rs 54 lacs) 6,317,280.00
14% CG 2005 {Rs 550 Lacs) 63,872,111.11
11.18% CG 2005 (Rs 90 Lacs) - 9,137,365.00
11.00% CG 2002 (Rs 50 Lacs) 5,224,555.58
11.50% CG 2008 (Rs 400 Lacs) 42,876,113.11
9.50% CG 2008 (Rs 350 Lacs) 32,888,444.44
10.80% CG 2008 (Rs 625 Lacs) 63,861,230.00
12.40% CG 2013{Rs 472 lacs) 62,605,448.80
12.32% CG 2011 {Rs 300 lacs) 32,826,400.00
11.25% CG 2005 (As 50 lacs) 5,284,375.00
12.00% CG 2008(Rs 28 lacs) 3,022,573.33
10.25% CG 2012 (Rs 200 lacs) 19,448,777.78
12.60% CG 2018 (Rs 100 lacs) 11,479,500.00
0.00% CG 2000 (Rs 100 lacs) 9,650,000.00
TOTAL 422,974,858.76 352,087,332.22

16. Sundry Debtors include Rs. NIL ipmvious year Rs.11,676,112/-) due from companias in

which Some directors are interested { Maximum oulstanding during the year Rs. NiL
previous year Rs.4,60,687,834/-) -

17. Deposits

Of the total Deposils with bank t:!E Rs. 35,20,000 {Previous year Rs. 102,66,000), fixed
deposits valuing to As. 6,25,000 (Previous year Rs.6,25,000) is pledged for guaranieas
given to National Securilies Glenring Corporation Limited, Rs. 25,00,000 (vabua?aar Rs

25,00,000) is pledged for guarantees given to The Stock Exchange, Mumbal, 5. 50,000
{Previous year Rs 50,000} is pladged for guarantee given to Puna Stock aand Rs.
3,45,000 (Previous Year As. 1,16,000) is pledged with Custodians pending tion of

Bad delivery of shares & As. NIL (P Year Rs. 66,00,000) and Rs. NIL. (Previous Vear
Rs. 375,000} are pledged with Intusind Bank respectively for Letter of credit facility and

* guaraniee given to Pune Stock Exchange respectively

"
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18. Quantitative Details*
Additional in*ormal

Home Trade lei

tion pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V] of tha

For M/S. PARIMAL R SHAH &CO

Aet, 1958;
Traded Un'ts Opening Stock Purchases Sales Closing Stock
Goods
: Qiyin | Value Qtyin | Value Qiyin | Vaiue G%in Vafue
lakhs As. lakhs As. fakhs As. As.
Lakdis Lakhs iakhs lakhs
Shares Nos 125 2s0 150 30| 1085) es510| 1885 360
Previous 180§ 1,801 Nil Nit 155§ 2678 25 250
year
» 18, Expenditure on foreign currency
2000 - 2001 1899 - 2000
Traveling expenses 2,631,178 3,325,668
Books and Periodicals Nil 145,805
Membership and subscriptions 3,531,567 223,788
Ithers 10,454,842. 244,876
Total 1,68,57,585 35,40,238
20. Managerial Remuneratiori included in the profit and loss account®
2000 - 2001 1839 - 2000
Salaries 27.64,800 4,98,713
Perquisites 1.89,900 3,41,805
Contribution 1o PF/ FPE 2,597,000 58,845
TOTAL 32,51,500 9,00,463
* Remuneration 1o direcio

Companies Act, 19858,

21. Smali Scale Industries

Thecompanyhasnoouislandngtosmauscal

22. Dividend paid 1o NAI sharshoiders Rs, 1,09,44,250/-

23.-Previous year figures have

been fegrouped, - reclassified and rearranged
necessary.

For and on behalf of the board
Charlared Accountan Home Trade Limited
SANJAY AGARWAL
Parimal R Shah Chairman
Proprietor
N.S.TRIVEDI

Place

Date

Execulive Director & Secretary

Mumbal

VIJAYKUMAR H. MOD|
Director

. June 30, 2001

s have been paid within the limits prescribed in Schedule Xiii of the

e indusirial undertakings for an amount more

wherevar

0y i £ a
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‘'HOME TRADE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2000

s
(A)Cu}: Flow from operating activitics

Net profit before tax 315,623,185 71321632
Adjustment for ;

Depreciation 25,719,741 5,976,039

Interest debited to profit & loss account 48635926 20,812,666

Interest credited to profit & loss account | (1,338,268) (17.864,976)

Sundry balances /Deferred revenue exp wiitten off 102,292,956 1,669.21

Gains on sale of Investments | (629300000) (112,625.223) ; :
Loss of sale of Fixed assets 132334 (453,857311) 144,633 (101,887,590
Openting profit before working capital changes (138,234,126) (30,565,958)
Adjustment for

Trade & other receivables (31.019,863) 11§,008,789

Inventoties (70.877,627) (283,656,763)

Trade payable & other lisbilities 151377360 __(49479,570)  (BB606363) | (256,254,337)
Cash generated from opemtions (88,754,256) (286,820,295

Deferred revenue expendituse paid (196,259,855)

Direct taxes paid

" 'Net Cash flow from operating activities .. A

{B)Cash flow from Investing activitics

Purchase of fixed assets (303,946,218)
Sale of fixed asscts 2,298,962
Purchase of Investmenis (30,099,000)
Sale of Investmenis 420,000,000
Interest received 577924
Intercorpurate deposits tzken 11,656,308

Repayment of Intercorporate d:ﬁnius e

Home Trade Limited

(2.582447)  (198,842302) (5.574.319) ’7 (36,

(267,596,558)

(30,945,154
14735
A
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n 1 -
P HOME TRADE LIMITED 3.03.01 ‘ - 31.03.00 ,
ity Net Cas.. sow from Inmn'ng activities ... B 100,487,976 218,632,347
(C)Cash flow f om Pinancing activitics ememt ‘31_
‘€6 . %
& Proceeds/ ( Repayment) from Secured loag 263,683,701 130,251,701 {_"_'j_,t,é ;
Intesest paid - 48,591,515) (20,069,723) |
; Dividend Paid 123.403,800) (18,606 313)
S
Net Cash flow from ﬁn:u:cing activities ,.. C 191,688,386 91,575,665
Net increase / {Decrease) in cash and cash i
J equivalents (A+B+C) 4,579,804 (13,131,755) _!
Add: C::h&&athﬁuhnluﬂlcb:@mhgof
the year 24,068,717 37,200,473
 Cash & Cash Equivalent at the ead of the year 28,648,521 24,068,717 j
|
e For and on behalf of the Board , 3
Home Trade Limiteq :
Date : 30-06-2001 Sanjay Agrawal N S Teived; Vijaykumar H Modi | ’
Chairman Executive Disector i
: Director &
Secretary

Foc Padimal R, Shah & Co,
Chartesed Accountants

Place :Mumba;
Daie : 30-06-2001

Parimal R. Shat 4
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: : PN f :
o AND DEPLOYMENT of FUNDs §
RS, Iy THOUSANDS) ;
Total 44 1,002,709 Total Agggtg 1.002.709‘
SOURCEg OF Funpg APPLICATION OF FuNDsg i
Paid-up Capitg 238,610 Net Fixed Assgyg 329577
H&Oenras‘and Surplyg 304,448 mvaslmema 54,708
Setured L oane , 413,498 " Net Assgty 513,157
Unsecureg Loang 45,155 105,177 ¢
358,534
289.!53

10%

¢
A
i
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£
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e HOME TRADE LIMITED
Repistered Office: 124A, Sohrab Hall, 21, Sascon Road, Pune — 411 001

: ATTENDANCE SLIP

- | Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall . ik
Registered Falio No. shares held

(Namae in Biock Letter)

t‘ hereby record my presence al the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at
the Registered Office at 124A, Schrab Hall, 21, Sascon Foad, Pune - 411 001. on Saturday,
29" September 2001, at 10.00 a.m,

Note: Please camy with you this Attendance Slip and hand over the same duly signed at the
spaeeprovidad.awuem:ancaolmeuee&ugl-lal.

-

TEAR HERE
HOME TRADE LIMITED -
Registered Otiice: 124A, Sohrab Hall, 21, Sasoon Road, Pune — 411 001
PROXY FORM
Registered Folio No. shares held
el o‘

;alng 8 member/members of the above names company hersby appaint
4 of or failing him

of as mylour
proxy lo vole for me/ us on mylour behall at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company held at the Registered office at 124A, Sohrab Hall, 21, Sasoon Road, Pune - 411 |
001 on on Saturday, 28" Seplember 2001, at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjoumnment thereof.

Signalure this day of 2001

Alfix 30 paise
Revenue
Stamp

..M. Cour
~Nappes




